G
e ——
J i

T
il il

ALY

02031441
Spinnaker Exploration Annual Report >

‘ ' R LT ) RIS YR ¢R ;

c APR 17900

< ey a——




i ol 17 §M@mﬂ~b§yﬂ@wf 7




— SPINNAKER EXPLORATION COMPANY
Financial Highlights

(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Revenues $ 210,376 $ 121,383 $ 34258
Income from operations 100,285 57,264 1,335
Net income 66,226 38,566 671
Basic income per common share 245 1.70 0.03
Diluted income per common share 234 161 0.03
Cash flow from operations '@ 188,209 107,465 23,718
— Cash flow from operations per common share ©@ 6.67 448 119
Capital expenditures 288,828 163,739 85,101
As of December 31, ) 2001 2000 1999
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,061 $ 63910 $ 20452
Short-term investments - 22,387 -
Total assets 587,316 442,704 189,553
Equity 458,492 361,259 177,102

SPINNAKER EXPLORATION COMPANY

Operating Highlights

2001 2000 1999

Production (MMcfe) 53,094 30194 13,044
Percent natural gas 96% 96% 92%
Average natural gas sales price per Mcf @ $ 3.9 $ 403 $ 257
Average oil and condensate sales price per barrel ® $ 2490 $ 2298 $ 19.76
Proved reserves (MMcfe) 323,207 182,688 104,501
Percent natural gas 54% 90% 86%
Present vatue of future net cash flows (before income taxes)

discounted at 10 percent (in thousands) $ 415139 $1,320,672 $ 151564
Lease acreage (net acres, in thousands) 629 337 189

" Pro forma results in 1989

Before working capital changes

@ Including the effects of hedging activities

“ Calculated using weighted average market prices of $2.71, $3.99 and $2.37 per Mctf of natural gas and $19.23, $30.41 and $25.70 per barrel of oil in
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively




TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS,

It is a pleasure to report Spinnaker’s results for 2001. We hope that
our progress meets your expectations.

The Company's production and reserves grew through explo-
ration at industry-leading rates. Our financial margins were
among the very best in the industry and our operating cost struc-
ture continued to be one of the lowest among public exploration
and production companies. BDuring 2001, Spinnaker made nine-
teen new discoveries in the Guli of Mexico. At the same time,
untested inventory was improved and enlarged. The Company
established itself as the dominant deep shelf explorer and the most
successtul player of its size in the deep water of the Gulf of Mexico.
In December 2001, Spinnaker became the best-positioned smaller
company in the Eastern Gulf of Mexico.

it should come as considerable comfort to you as a shareholder

that these achievements have occurred as the latest progression

in the Spinnaker story, and in a year when we simply experienced
our share of success and failure. What has been established is
that a well-prepared company with substantial technical content
can explore for a living and can do so with high financial margins.
The fact that exploration can be lumpy is acknowledged. Timing
is sometimes less predictable than we would choose. However,
high quality exploration with adequate program size can consis-
tently create value. We believe that this will continue to be the
case at Spinnaker.

We have added clarity to our strategic positioning and to our
medium and long-term commitment to exploration plays that offer
significant field size potential. This is not new but we have made
excellent progress.

Spinnaker is now the most active and successful explorer of

the deep stratigraphic section on the shelf of the Gulf of Mexico. We




own in excess of 400,000 net acres on prospects that we have gen-
erated. We have drilled as many wells and more discoveries than
any other explorer in this play since 1998. We have spent a lof of
energy and money in the refinement of our play concepts, tech-
nologies, technical criteria and drilling practices. There is much
that we do not know yet, but we believe that we are well advanced
when compared to most of the industry.

The deep shelf is demanding. Bry hole costs of $10 million or
more are not uncommen. In fact, the drilling challenges in this
play may be the most intense in the entire Gulf, regardless of
water depth. While big fields have been and are being found,
smaller ones are frequently discovered instead. Cost structure is
critical to long-term success. These dynamics necessitate long-
term commitment to the play coupled with adequate program

size. We drilled 12 deep shelf wells during 2001 and expect fo drill

between 12 and 15 in 2002. Today's moderate-cost environment
makes it timely to explore in this rewarding play. Spinnaker
added at least two significant new fields to the play during 2001;
Resolute Field {High Island 197 and 175} and the Stirrup Field
{(Mustang Island 861).

We also made great progress in deep water during 2001. The
Company drilled and/or announced four new field discoveries in
deep water during the year; Front Runner, Front Runner South,
Seventeen Hands and Callisto. Additionally, development pro-
gressed on our 100% owned subsea tieback at Sangria and prob-~
able field size was determined at the Zia project.

Once again, these outcomes were the product of methadical
etforts by our very talented exploration and production team.
While one doesn'tfind a Front Runner field everyday, | believe that

we wilt find other large fields in the future. | am also certain that we
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WE BELIEVE THAT MAINTAIN-
ING CONTINUITY IN OUR
EXPLORATION ACTIVITIES $ 50,000

DURING ALL PHASES OF

$ 40,000
COMMQDITY PRICE CYCLES IS

IMPORTANT FOR A BALANCED
AND OIVERSIFIED EXPLO-
RATION EFFORT. WE HAVE
POSITIONED OURSELVES

TO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF

$ 30,000
$ 20,000

$ 10,000
LOWER DRILLING AND OTHER

OILFIELD SERVICE COSTS

DURING PERIODS OF LOW

COMMODITY PRICES. B Jack-up Dayrates

will drill some dry holes along the way. The key is the broad and
consistent exposure to high quality prospect concepts. Spinnaker
does this exceptionally well.

The Front Runner and Front Runner South Fields could each be
world-class, 100+ million barrel oil fields. We own, along with our
partners, a total of 17 blocks in the immediate Front Runner area
covering 98,000 acres. Spinnaker owns a 25% interest in Front
Runner, Front Runner South and a total of 15 blocks in the area. The
Company also owns a 50% interest in and operates two blocks in the
area. In total, at least ten untested prospects exist on our acreage.
While individually, each of these prospects carries risk, we are
excited about this new core area and the potential it represents for a
company of our size. In addition to this prolific area, Spinnaker owns
an interest in five other deep water discoveries and many good deep

water prospects. We hold an interest in a total of 89 deep water

# Natural Gos Prices

JACK-UP DAYRATES AND NATURAL GAS PRIC

Source: Wall Street Analyst Research

blocks representing more than 500,000 gross acres. We are well
positioned to continue our success in the deep waters of the Gulf.

In December, Spinnaker became the best positioned small to
mid-sized independent in the Eastern Gulf of Mexico. OCS Federal
Lease Sale #181 took place after considerable deliberation by gov-
ernment and over opposition, primarily from the State of Florida.
Spinnaker and its partners were well prepared for the offerings
and won two of our three top prospects. We are hopeful that explo-
ration can proceed during 2003.

Together, Spinnaker’s dominant positioning on the deep shell,
major success and positioning in deep water, and key holdings in
the Eastern Gult constitute a portfolio that is one of the very bestin
the Gulf of Mexico — for any company of any size. We sense, as well,
that we are capable of meeting the inevitable challenges that we

wilt face in the future.




We will always need to be mindful of how we allocate capital
because we have never been opportunity constrained. The size
of the financial task that comes with success in these major plays
does not escape us. We will allow our balance sheet to grow
appropriately to keep our leverage low and to preserve our risk-
tolerant culture as we continue to grow.

Many of you know us fairly well and to the extent that you do,
you know how important our people are to this successful formula.
One of those individuals is Bill Hubbard, our Vice President of
Exploration. You've heard me characterize him as “an absolute
icon in the business,” and the description is accurate. Bill has
decided to retire at the end of 2003. We will find him difficult to
replace and although his departure is some time away, we are

thinking about it now.

During 2001, Spinnaker experienced record production, rev-
enues, cash flow and operating income. It was another great year by
any measurable standard. While the commaodity outlook is less cer-
tain than it was one year ago, Spinnaker is positioned to prosper
regardless. We want you to know that we realize that our successes
are directly related to, and made possible by, your consistent support.

From the 56 of us who have the privilege of working here each
day, we offer our thanks. We will continue to do the very best job

that we can for you.

ROGER L. JARVIS

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer










In an industry that has struggled in recent years to generate ade-
quate and constant returns on the capital required for growth,
Spinnaker was conceived with a vision that an information advan-
tage would result in a superior business model. This information
advantage manifests itselt in several ways. It starts with the
dataset — 1,400 blocks at inception in early 1897, approximately
11,800 blocks of original and reprocessed data currently. However,
the data alone is not sufficient. Mindset and culture are also key
components. When acquired broadly, seismic allows for a view in
regional context. Add downhole well control to the analysis, per-
formed on all of the acreage in a trend, including non-Spinnaker-
owned properties, and the picture becomes clearer.

From there, technology plays a key role in the further illumi-

nation and differentiation of underlying geology. The product of

this effort is a massive volume of information and the advantage
is two-fold. A greatly increased number of prospects provides us
with the ongoing ability to constantly high grade them and a bet-
ter understanding of the individual risks associated with each
one. Understanding and sequencing risk properly is alsc a cru-
cial element of our vision and essential to what we do.

Together, our information advantage and our focus on deep
shelf and deep water exploration have generated unprecedented
production and reserve growth rates in the Gulf of Mexico over
the past five years. Our production has grown to 53.1 Befe in 2001
from 0.1 Befe in 1997. Our oil and gas reserves were 323.2 Bcfe at
the end of 2001 compared to 13.4 Bcfe at the end of 1997, With

our commitment to technology and access to the superior dataset
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that exists at Spinnaker, we have created an environment that is
truly unique. This combination of technology and our focus on
exploration accelerates our activity level and produces quality
outcomes that translate into significant value for stockholders.
TECHNOLOGY SEQUENCE

Seismic data becomes valuable decision-making information when
viewed and evaluated by our exploration specialists using sophis-
ticated modeling and analytical tocls. With large geographical
datasets we are able to deduce the best new prospects in unex-
plored areas by drawing comparisons between them and existing
wells in other locations. After identifying shared regional features,
we further refine the local prospect information so that it provides
additional details about subsurface features and characteristics

that might otherwise conceal favorable environments.

Our recently completed visualization center contains a high-
resolution, large screen image projection system that works with
more powerful processing hardware and software than was pre-
viously available. Large screen, immersive image environments
of this type have been proven to be beneficial for seismic data
interpretation because they provide improved pattern recognition
within either still frame or motion mode. The result is a state-of-
the-art, collaborative environment that allows multi-discipline
teams to scan huge volumes of data, isolate patterns indicative of
hydrocarbon-bearing formations, correlate them to known pro-
ducing reservoirs, and then plan for their exploitation in a seam-

less, efficient process.




AT YEAR-END 2001, WE HELD
284 LEASEHOLD INTERESTS,
INCLUDING 88 LEASES IN DEEP
WATER. IN THE LAST YEAR, WE
ADDED TEN LEASES AROUND
OUR SIGNIFICANT DEEP WATER
OIL DISCOVERY AT FRONT
RUNNER AS WELL AS NUMER-
0US LEASES IN THE HIGH

ISLAND AREA WHERE WE
HAVE EXPERIENCED HIGH

EXPLORATION SUCCESS

RATES AND EXCELLENT

PRODUCTION RESULTS.

EXPLORATION YIELDS GROWTH

3-0 Seismic Data > Spinnaker owns one of the largest recent
vintage 3-D seismic databases in the Gulf of Mexico. We consider

these massive data volumes, sophisticated imaging techniques

and advanced systems technology all necessary to succeed in a
meaningful way in the Gulf's frontier plays. Our broad database
of 3-D seismic has been a key driver of our rapid growth and our
low cost structure. We currently own license rights to approxi-
mately 11,800 blocks of data, an increase of 2,300 blocks since
year-end 2000.

Leasehold > At the end of 2001, Spinnaker held 284 leasehold
interests in the Gulf, including 196 on the shelf and 88 in deep
water. Our teasehold has grown methodically from our inception

and we anticipate that the number of leasehold interests will

increase again during 2002. With a portfolio approach to risk

and play types, our information advantage has allowed us to

continually add to our inventory of prospects. During 2003,

Spinnaker will face certain lease expirations. Although minimal,

lease expirations are an ongoing function of the constant high-
grading process.

We have never acquired a producing property, so lease sales
and the opportunities that come with them are the lifeblood of our
company. This year our participation at several Minerals Manage-
ment Service lease sales bore significant fruit. In the Central Gulf
lease sale in March, Spinnaker and our partners were pleased o
acquire ten blocks around our significant early 2001 deep water
discovery, Front Runner. In August, the Western Gulf lease sale

resulted in 32 successtul bids, 22 of which are in the Rob trend in
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the High Island and Galveston areas where we have been suc-
cessiul in drilling 19 of 26 wells.

In December 2001, the first lease sale since 1988 was con-
ducted for the Eastern Gulf. Although we were the smailest com-
pany to participate in this sale, we were awarded, along with our
partners, leases on eight blocks that included two of our top three
prospects. Our net exposure was only $3.4 million. Leases
awarded in the Eastern Gulf lease sale were the result of a two-
year effort on our part and provide inventory for the 2003 drilling
program and beyond — all in an area that has experienced min-
imal exploratory drilling over its life. Spinnaker owns a 20% to 33%
working interest in this area.

Drilling Results > Spinnaker experienced significantly higher

activity levels during 2001. We decisioned 35 wells and defined 19

new discoveries compared to 16 new discoveries in 2000. Since
inception, we have drilled 58 successful wells in 97 -attempts,
resulting in a success rate of 80% (61% in net well terms). While
we are certainly a leader in terms of exploratory success rates, we
have found high quality assets as well.

Natural Gas and Oil Reserves > Proved natural gas and oil
reserves at the end of 2001 totaled 323.2 Bete compared to 182.7 Bcfe
at the end of 2000. In 2001, our reserve additions totaled 193.6 Bcfe
or 106% of our reserves at the beginning of the year. Reserves grew

77% after production and reserve replacement was 365%.

11
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EXPLORING THE DEEP SHELF

Spinnaker is the Gulf of Mexico’s most active deep shelf player.
Few companies are currently active in the deep shelf, not only
due to drilling and production technology barriers and significant
cost requirements, but also because deeper sub-tier features are
much more difficult to image. All of these aspects create opportu-
nity for Spinnaker. Of all the wells drilled in the Gulf of Mexico
since 1960, 10% have been drilled at depths deeper than 15,000
feet and 3% deeper than 17,000 feet. Although imaging tech-
niques and other technology for deep shelf plays are still evolv-
ing, we have defined four dominant deep shelf trends in the past
four years. Data, technology and experience merged in the proper
environment have generated economic success. Spinnaker is one

of a few independents that possess this mindset in combination

with the tool kit necessary to succeed in the Gulf's deep shelf
frontier plays.

We believe that the Gulf of Mexico, long one of the world's most
productive oil and gas provinces, has many significant deep shelf
plays that have not been explored. Our deep shelf business has
never been more impertant to the Company than it is now. The
Gulf's extensive production, gathering and transmission infrastruc-
ture and the resulting immediate access to current gas markets
combined with our low cost structure should continue to provide

substantial cash flow with which we can fund continued growth.
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MAJOR DISCOVERIES
High Isiand Area > The High Island area provides an example
of our ability to quickly and broadly leverage new drilling infor-
mation 1o create multipte drilling targets. Our initial success in
1998 has subsequently fed to 15 additional successtul exploratory
wells and numerous other prospects in the area. With the knowl-
edge gained from the first well, we have assembled a 45 block
lease position covering 245,000 gross acres and have 50 undritled
prospects. We continue to find and upgrade prospect teads in the
High Island area that are likely to result in additional drilling.
The High Island 197 (Resolute) exploratory well is our latest
signiticant discovery. We plan to drill three to five additional wells
in this area during 2002 to test the entire sequence of Rob sands.

Production should commence from this new field by mid-year

2002 We are operators of the field with a 50% working interest
and a 42% net revenue interest.

Alex Deep Field > In partnership with a major oil company, we
drilled the original well in Brazos A-19 in early 1998 and by late
1999, the well flowed at a daily rate in excess of 80 MMcf prior to
experiencing major mechanical problems. Subsequently plugged
and abandoned, its replacement weil was drilled to total depth,
evaluated and cased successiutlly in 2001. The well encountered
productive intervals similar to the original well. We expect pro-
duction to commence mid-year 2002. We own a 15% working
interest and 12.5% net revenue interest in the Alex Deep well.
This discovery is an example of how information and the technot-
ogy unlock ideas. The Alex Deep well is in the middle of the Corsair

trend, an area discovered by our major partner in the 1970s that




DEEP WATER OIL DISCOVERY-FRONT RUNNER
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historically produced only from shallower horizons. Although
heavily evaluated for two decades, the area’s deep shelf potential
was only recently brought to light with this 100+ Bcf discovery.
Comparison of 2002 / 2001 Deep Shelf Programs > We plan
to drill another ten to twelve wells in the High Island area during
2002. Our expanding database will continue to yield opportuni-
ties, while the existing prospect base will be further explored. We
plan to enhance our position in a number of existing plays as well
as enter new areas. Our prospects for growth in the deep shelf
have never been so strong or exciting.

Success in the Deep Water > Generally, only the largest
exploration and production companies are consistently active in
the deep waters of the Guli. Deep shelf and deep water explo-

ration share many of the same barriers to entry including drilling

and production technology, significant costs and expenses, in
addition to long lead times. A strong balance sheet and access to
capital are vital requirements for successful participation in this
capital intensive area. We have been successiul in the deep
waters of the Gulf despite being a younger and smaller company
than the typical deep water player, and in 2001 we successfully
transitioned a portion of cur exploration efforts from the shelf to
the deep water. In the last year alone, we participated in seven
successful deep water wells. Over the prior three-year period, we
participated in only three successiul deep water wells.

MAJOR DISCOVERIES

Front Runner Area > The Green Canyon 338/339 (Front Runner)
area is one of our most exciting exploratory areas. To date, we

have participated in five consecutive discoveries in the area,




FRONT RUNNER
N. CLOSER
$ FRONT RUNNER

CUATRAN
GOl BAPA

LE COMTE

S ST GO

UNNER AREA IS ONE "GF GUR'MOST EXCITING”

E HAVE IDENTIFIED TEN: UNORILLED

LOEK. LEASE. POSITION. COVERING:

OBUCTION (Bcte)

1999

2000

s THREE-TO-FIVE-NEW-PROSR

o B i

assembled a 17 block lease position covering 98,000 gross acres,
and have identified ten undrilled prospects. Spinnaker owns a 25%
to 50% working interest and net revenue interest in the Front
Runner area. These working interests are subject to royalty of
12.5% after production of 87.5 million equivalent barrels of oil, on a
block-by-block and field-by-field basis. Along with our partners, we
have sanctioned a spar production platform for this discovery.

Comparison of 2002 / 2001 Deep Water Programs > The
Company plans to test three to five prospects in the Front Runner
area in 2002. Although not without risk, our prospects for growth
in deep water are very encouraging. In addition to Front Runner,
our efforts in the deep water continue to expand with three wild-

cats planned in other areas of the Gulf in 2002.

PRODUCTION

Production increased 76% to 53.1 Bcfe in 2001 from 30.2 Bcfe in
2000. As our exploration efforts have discovered excellent assets,
our drilling and production group has delivered timely and cre-
ative development solutions. This combination has allowed us to
bring fields on-line quickly and economically. We believe that our
quality of operation, including cost control, is equal in importance
to our exploration process. As a result, we are one of the Guli's
lowest unit cost producers among publicly-traded companies.
Front Runner will take another two years to come on-line, but we
feel confident 2004 production will be positively impacted in a
material manner. The additional prospects in the Front Runner

area give us reason for optimism beyond 2004.
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REVENUES {in millions)

NET INCOME ([in millions)

CASH FLOWS lin millions}

Before working capital changes

B | 2 i |
1999 2000 2001 1999 2000 2001 1999 2000 2001

{Pro lorma results in 1999}

ANOTHER OUTSTANDING YEAR

Our financial performance in 2001 was the direct result of significant
production gains, contributions from higher average commodity prices

and continued operating efficiencies. We have never purchased oil

and gas reserves or production. Instead, our focus on exploration to
fuel growth has translated to high margins and superior returns.
Revenues increased $89.0 million, or 73%, to $210.4 million in
2001. Net income increased $27.7 million, or 72%, to $66.2 million in
2001. Cash flow from operations increased $81.7 million, or 76%, to
$189.2 miltion in 2001. Spinnaker ended the year with no debt and
$14.1 million in cash and cash equivalents. Going forward, while we
anticipate carrying some debt in 2002, we plan to continue the strat-
egy of financing ourselves cautiously so our stockholders may ben-

efit throughout the business cycle.

{Pro forma resuits in 1999)

LOOKING FORWARD

We expect our information advantage and focus on deep shelf and

deep water exploration to continue to yield new opportunities for our

company and our shareholders. Our position in a number of existing

plays will continue to be enhanced and we plan to enter new areas in
the deep water. With a capital budget of $250 million, we plan to drill
35 wells during 2002, including 28 on the shelf and seven in deep
water. While this number is down from our spending last year, our
activity level remains the same. We are well-positioned to take advan-
tage of market downcycles in which service company costs are
reduced. Accordingly, we are taking advantage of the current cost
structure to drill higher risk, higher potential wells at significantly less
cost than a year ago. We are optimistic that Spinnaker will continue to

grow at above average rates and look forward to a successful 2002.




SPINNAKER EXPLORATION COMPANY
Cautionary Statement About Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the information in this annual report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933 and Section 21E. of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The forward-looking statements speak only as of the date made,
and the Company undertakes no obligation to update such forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements may be iden-
tified by the use of the words "believe,” "expect,” “anticipate,” “will,” "contemplate,” “would” and similar expressions that contemplate
future events. These future events include the following matters:

- financial position;

* business strategy;

- budgets;

+ amount, nature and timing of capital expenditures, including future development costs;

+ drilling of wells;

- natural gas and oil reserves;

* timing and amount of future production ot natural gas and oil;

- operating costs and other expenses;

- cash flow and anticipated tiquidity;
k= - prospect development and property acquisitions; and

’ + marketing of natural gas and oil.

Numerous important factors, risks and uncertainties may affect the Company’s operating results, including:
> the risks associated with exploration;
+ the ability to find, acquire, market, develop and produce new properties;
* natural gas and oil price volatility;
- uncertainties in the estimation of proved reserves and in the projection of future rates of production and timing of

development expenditures;

- operating hazards attendant to the natural gas and oil business;

+ downhole drilling and completion risks that are generally not recoverable from third parties or insurance;
- potential mechanical failure or under-performance of significant wells;

« climatic conditions; »

+ availability and cost of material and equipment;

* delays in anticipated start-up dates;

+ actions or inactions of third-party operators ot the Company’s properties;
+ the ability to find and retain skilled personnel;

+ availability of capital;

- the strength and financial resources of competitors;

- regulatory developments;

* environmental risks; and

““““ } * general economic conditions.

Any of the facters listed above and other factors contained in this annual report could cause the Company’s actual results to dif-
fer materially from the results implied by these or any other forward-looking statements made by the Company or on its behali. The
Company cannot provide assurance that future results will meet its expectations. You should pay particular attention to the risk
factors and cautionary statements described under “Risk Factors” in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions

and Results of Operations.”
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SPINNAKER EXPLORATION COMPANY
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

OVERVIEW

The Company experienced significant growth rates in both production and reserves in 2001. Performance highlights in 2001 compared
to 2000 included record:

+ Production of 53.1 Bcfe, up 76 percent.

+ Proved reserves of 323.2 Bcfe, up 77 percent after production; reserve replacement was 365 percent of production.

- Revenues of $210.4 million, up 73 percent.

- Income from operations of $100.3 million, up 75 percent.

- Net income of $66.2 million, or $2.34 per diluted share, up 72 percent.

- Cash flows from operating activities, before working capital changes, of $189.2 million, up 76 percent.

Spinnaker’s results of operations and financial position were significantly impacted by natural gas production and prices in 2001,
Natural gas revenues increased $79.0 million. Natural gas production volumes increased 22.4 Bel, contributing $123.9 million of the
increase in natural gas revenues, excluding the effects of hedging activities, offset in part by $44.9 million related to lower average natu-
ral gas prices in 2001 compared to 2000. The Company had $14.1 million in cash and cash equivalents and no debt at December 31, 2001.

In addition, Spinnaker participated in a significant deep water ail discovery in 2001 on Green Canyon Blocks 338/339 (Front Runner)
with a 25 percent non-operator working interest. The Company participated in five consecutive successful wells and sidetracks in test-
ing the reservoirs on these blocks. This signiticant oil discovery has changed Spinnaker’s reserve profile. Proved oil and condensate
reserves were 46 percent of total proved reserves at December 31, 2001 compared to 10 percent at December 31, 2000. Of the Company's
total proved reserves as of December 31, 2001, 73 percent were proved undeveloped reserves. Front Runner represented more than

50 percent of total proved undeveloped reserves.
RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information set forth elsewhere in this annual report, the following factors should be careiully considered when

evaluatling Spinnaker.

Exploration is a high-risk activity, and the 3-0 seismic data and other advanced technologies the Company uses cannot eliminate
exploration risk and require experienced technical personnel whom the Company may be unable to attract or retain.

The Company's future success will depend on the success of its exploratory drilling program. Exploration activities involve numerous
risks, including the risk that no commercially productive natural gas or oil reservoirs will be discovered. in addition, the Company often
is uncertain as to the future cost or timing of drilling, completing and producing wells. Furthermore, drilling operations may be curtailed,
delayed or canceled as a result of the additional exploration time and expense associated with a variety of factors, including unexpected
drilling conditions, pressure or irregularities in formations, equipment failures or accidents, adverse weather conditions, compliance with
governmental requirements and shortages or delays in the availability of drilling rigs or equipment.

Even when used and properly interpreted, 3-D seismic data and visualization techniques only assist geoscientists in identifying
subsurface structures and hydrocarbon indicators. They do not aliow the interpreter to know conclusively if hydrocarbons are present
or economically producible. The Company could incur losses as a result of these expenditures. Poor results from exploration activities
could affect future cash flows and resulis of operations materially and adversely.

The Company’s exploratory drilling success will depend, in part, on its ability to atiract and retain experienced explorationists
and other professional personnel. Competition for explorationists and engineers with experience in the Gulf of Mexico is extremely
intense. If the Company cannot retain its current personnel or attract additional experienced personnel, its ability to compete in the

Gulf of Mexico could be adversely affected.
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Spinnaker's 2001 deep water oil discovery, Front Runner, will require significant financial resources and presents numerous uncertainties.
Spinnaker’s 2001 deep water oil discovery on Green Canyon Blocks 338/339, Front Runner, in which the Company has a 25% non-oper-
ater working interest, has required and will continue to require significant financial resources over the next two years. The Company
incurred $30 million in capital expenditures for Front Runner in 2001 and expects to incur an aggregate of $110 million in future devel-
opment costs during 2002 and 2003. Also, Front Runner accounted for more than 50 percent of proved undeveloped reserves at
December 31, 2001.

Another oil and gas company operates Front Runner. As a result, the Company has a limited ability to exercise influence over oper-
ations and costs for this property. The Company has limited experience with large deep water and deep drilling depth discoveries sim-
itar to Front Runner as most of its prior discoveries have occurred in shallower waters and at shallower drilling depths. Front Runner
is located in approximately 3,500 feet of water and the most recent well was drilled to a total depth in excess of 21,700 feet. Although
the Company expects to incur approximately $140 million to develop this discovery, its size and scope are much larger than the
Company's prior discoveries and the Company may encounter difficulties and delays that could cause actual expenditures to far exceed
anticipated amounts. Even if production ultimately commences for this discovery, it may produce substantially less oil and natural gas
than currently projected. The Company does not expect this discovery to commence production prior to 2004, but it must commit sub-
stantial resources in advance of the expected production date and cannot predict the price of oil if and when production commences.
These uncertainties and other risks described in this “Risk Factors” section and elsewhere in this annual report make it difficult to pre-
dict whether Front Runner can be successfully or economically developed. If Front Runner cannot be successfully and economically

devetoped, the Company’s future business, financial condition and operating results will be materially and adversely affected.

The natural gas and oil business involves many operating risks that can cause substantial losses.

The natural gas and oil business involves a variety of operating risks, including fires, explosions, blow-outs and surface cratering,
uncontrollable flows of underground natural gas, oit and formation water, natural disasters, pipe or cement failures, casing collapses,
embedded oilfield drilling and service tools, abnormally pressured formations and environmentat hazards such as natural gas leaks,
oil spills, pipeline ruptures and discharges of toxic gases. If any of these events occur, the Company could incur substantial losses as
a result of injury or loss of life, severe damage to and destruction of property, natural resources and equipment, pollution and other
environmental damage, clean-up responsibilities, regulatory investigation and penalties, suspension of the Company’s operations and
repairs to resume operations. if the Company experiences any of these problems, it could affect well bores, platforms, gathering sys-
terns and processing facilities, which could adversely affect its ability to conduct operations.

Offshore operations are also subject to a variety of operating risks specific to the marine environment, such as capsizing, collisions
and damage or loss from hurricanes or other adverse weather conditions. These conditions can cause substantial damage to facilities
and interrupt production. As a result, the Company could incur substantial liabifities that could reduce or eliminate the funds available
for exploration, development or leasehold acquisitions, or result in loss of equipment and properties.

For some risks, the Company may not obtain insurance if it believes the cost of available insurance is excessive relative to the risks
presented. In addition, pollution and environmental risks generally are not fully insurable. If a significant accident or other event occurs

and is not fully covered by insurance, it could adversely affect the Company’s operations.
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Exploration for natural gas and oil at deeper drilling depths and in the deep waters of the Gulf of Mexico involves greater operational
and financial risks than exploration at shallower depths and in shallower waters. These risks could result in substantial losses.

As part of its strategy, the Company explores for natural gas and oil at deeper drilling depths and in the deep waters of the Gulf of
Mexico, where operations are more difficutt and costly than at shallower depths and in shallower waters. Deep depth and deep water
drilling and operations require the application of recently developed technologies that involve a higher risk of mechanical failure. The
Company has experienced and will continue to experience significantly higher drilling costs for its deep depth and deep water prospects.
Furthermore, the deep waters of the Gult of Mexico lack the physical and oilfield service infrastructure present in the shallower waters.
As a result, deep water operations may require a significant amount of time between a discovery and the time that the Company can

market the natural gas or oil, increasing both the financial and operational risk involved with these operations.

The Company is vulnerable to operational, regulatory and other risks associated with the Gulf of Mexico because it currently explores
and produces exclusively in that area.
The Company's operations and revenues are impacted acutely by conditions in the Gulf of Mexico because it currently explores and
produces exclusively in that area. This concentration of activity makes the Company more vulnerable than many of its competitors to
the risks associated with the Gulf of Mexico, including delays and increased costs relating to adverse weather conditions, drilling rig
and other oilfield services and compliance with environmental and other laws and regulations.

During the second half of 2000 and early 2001, higher prices for natural gas and oil led to greater demand for drilling rig and other

oilfield services. As a result, the Company experienced increased costs and reduced availability of these services.

A significant part of the value of the Company's production and reserves is concentrated in a small number of offshore properties.
Because of this concentration, any production problems or inaccuracies in reserve estimates related to those properties are more
likely to adversely impact the Company's business.

During 2001, over 71 percent of the Company’s production came from three of its properties in the Guli of Mexico. It mechanical prob-
lems, storms or other events curtailed a substantial portion of this production, the Company’s cash flow would be adversely affected. In
addition, at December 31, 2001, the Company's proved reserves were located on 30 different blocks in the Gulf of Mexico, with approx-
imately 73 percent of the proved reserves attributable to five of these properties. One property, Front Runner, accounted for more than
50 percent of total proved undeveloped reserves. If the actual reserves associated with any one of these five properties are substan-

tially less than the estimated reserves, the Company's results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

The Company'’s right to receive data under the Data Agreement will be substantiaily restricted after March 31, 2002. In addition,

if PGS terminates the Data Agreement, the Company’s ability to find additional reserves could be impaired.

The Company'’s success depends heavily on its access to 3-D seismic data, and one of its primary sources for 3-D seismic data is the
Data Agreement. The Company is only entitled to receive and use 3-D seismic data that PGS acquires and processes prior to March 31,
2002 or that PGS is in the process of acquiring or processing as of that date. In addition, if PGS terminates the Data Agreement, the
Company would lose access to a portion of its 3-D seismic data which loss could have an adverse effect on its ability to find additional
reserves. PGS may terminate the Data Agreement on several grounds, including if a PGS competitor acquires control of Spinnaker or if
the Company breaches the Data Agreement subject to specified exceptions.
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Competitors may use superior technology which the Company may be unable lo afford or which would require costly investment
in order to compete.

The industry is subject to rapid and significant advancements in technology, including the introduction of new products and services
using new technologies. As competitors use or develop new technologies, the Company may be placed at a competitive disadvantage,
and competitive pressures may force it to implement new technologies at a substantial cost. In addition, competitors may have greater
financial, technical and personnel resources that allow them to enjoy technological advantages and may in the future allow them to
implement new technologies before the Company can. The Company cannot be certain that it will be able fo impiement technologies on
a timely basis or at a cost that is acceptable to it. One or more of the technologies that the Company currently uses or that it may imple-
ment in the future may become obsolete, and it may be adversely affected. For example, marine seismic acquisition technology has
been characterized by rapid technological advancements in recent years and further significant technological developments could sub-

stantially impair the 3-0 seismic data’s value.

Reserve estimates depend on many assumptions that may turn out fo be inaccurate. Any material inaccuracies in these reserve
estimates or underlying assumptions will materially affect the quantities and net present value of the Company’s reserves.

The process of estimating natural gas and oil reserves is complex. It requires interpretations of available technical data and various
assumptions, including assumptions relating to economic factors. Any significant inaccuracies in these interpretations or assumptions
could materially affect the estimated quantities and net present value of reserves.

In order to prepare these estimates, the Company must project production rates and timing of development expenditures. The
Company must also anatyze available geological, geophysical, production and engineering data, and the extent, quality and reliability of
this data can vary. The process also requires economic assumptions such as natural gas and oil prices, drilling and operating expenses,
capital expenditures, faxes and availability of funds. Therefore, estimates of natural gas and oil reserves are inherently imprecise.

Actual future production, natural gas and oil prices, revenues, taxes, development expenditures, operating expenses and quanti-
ties of recoverable natural gas and oil reserves most likely will vary from the Company’s estimates. Any significant variance could mate-
rially affect the estimated quantities and net present value of reserves. In addition, the Company may adjust estimates of proved
reserves to reflect production history, resulls of exploration and development, prevailing natural gas and ol prices and other factors,
many of which are beyond the Company's control. At Becember 31, 2001, approximately 87 percent of the Company’s proved reserves
were either proved undeveloped or proved non-producing. Moreover, some of the producing wells included in the reserve report had
produced for a relatively short period of time as of December 31, 2001, Because most of the reserve estimates are not based on a lengthy
production history and are calculated using volumetric analysis, these estimates are less reliable than estimates based on a lengthy
production history.

It should not be assumed that the present value of future net cash flows from the Company’s proved reserves is the current market
value of its estimated natural gas and oil reserves. In accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission requirements, the Company
bases the estimated discounted future net cash flows from its proved reserves on prices and costs on the date of the estimate. Actual

future prices and costs may differ materially from those used in the net present value estimate.

The failure fo replace reserves would adversely affect production and cash flows.

The Company's future natural gas and oil production depends on its success in finding or acquiring additional reserves. If the Company
fails to replace reserves, its level of production and cash flows would be adversely impacted. In general, production from natural gas
and oil properties declines as reserves are depleted, with the rate of decline depending on reservoir characteristics. The Company's
total proved reserves decline as reserves are produced unless it conducis other successful exploration and development activities or
acquires properties containing proved reserves, or both. The Company’s ability to make the necessary capital investment to maintain
or expand its asset base of natural gas and oil reserves would be impaired to the extent cash flow from operations is reduced and

external sources of capital become limited or unavailable. The Company may not be successtul in exploring for, developing or acquir-

ing additional reserves. f the Company is not successiul, its future production and revenues will be adversely affected.




22

SPINNAKER EXPLORATION COMPANY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Relatively short production periods for Gulf of Mexico properties subject the Company to higher reserve replacement needs, require
significant capital expenditures fo replace production and may impair its ability to reduce production during periods of low natural
gas and oil prices.
Production of reserves from reservoirs in the Gulf of Mexico generally declines more rapidly than from reservoirs in many other pro-
ducing regions of the world. This results in recovery of a relatively higher percentage of reserves from properties in the Gulf of Mexico
during the initial few years of production. As a result, reserve replacement needs from new prospects are greater and require the
Company to incur significant capital expenditures to replace production. The rapid production declines of certain producing wells, com-
bined with pipeline-mandated curtailments of certain facilities, shut-ins related to facility upgrades and less than anticipated results from
workovers, resulted in lower production in the fourth quarter of 2001 compared to the prior quarter. The Company expects a further
decline in production during the first quarter of 2002.

Also, revenues and return on capital will depend significantly on prices prevailing during these relatively short production periods.
The Company's potential need to generate revenues to fund ongoing capital commitments or reduce indebtedness may limit its ability

to slow or shut-in production from producing wells during periods of low prices for natural gas and oil.

Natural gas and oil prices fluctuate widely, and low prices could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s business and
financial results.
The Company's revenues, profitability and future growth depend substantially on prevailing prices for natural gas and oil. Prices also
affect the amount of cash flow available for capital expenditures and the Company’s ability to borrow and raise additional capital. The
amount the Company can borrow under the Credit Facility is subject to periodic re-determination based in part on changing expecta-
tions of future prices. Lower prices may also reduce the amount of natural gas and oil that the Company can economically produce.
Prices for natural gas and oil fluctuate widely. For example, natural gas prices declined significantly in 2001 from levels reached
in the second half of 2000 and early 2001. Prices for natural gas and oit also declined significantly in 1998 and, for an extended
period of time, remained substantially below prices abtained in previous years. Amang the factors that can cause this fluctuation are
the level of consumer product demand, weather conditions, domestic and foreign governmental regulations, the price and availability
of alternative fuels, political conditions in natural gas and oil producing regions, the domestic and foreign supply oi natural gas and
oil, the price of foreign imports and overall economic conditions. if naturat gas and oil prices decline, even if for only a short period of

time, it is possible that write-downs of natural gas and oil properties could occur in the future.

Hedging production has limited and may continue fo limit potential gains from increases in commodity prices or result in losses.

The Company enters into hedging arrangements from time to time to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in natural gas and oil prices and
to achieve more predictabte cash flow. These financial arrangements take the form of swap contracts or costless collars and are placed
with major trading counterparties the Company believes represent minimum credit risks. The Company had in place both financial hedge
and physical contracts with Enron North America Corp. at the time it filed for bankrupicy in December 2001. Spinnaker did not receive pay-
ment as required under these contracts. The Company cannot provide assurance that other trading counterparties will not become credit
risks in the future. Hedging arrangements expose the Company to risks in some circumstances, including situations when the other party
1o the hedging contract delaults on its contract obligations or there is a change in the expected differential between the underlying price
in the hedging agreement and actual prices received. These hedging arrangements have limited and may continue to limit the benetit the
Company could receive from increases in the prices for natural gas and oil. The Company cannot provide assurance that the hedging
transactions it has entered into, or will enter into, will adequately protect it from fluctuations in natural gas and oil prices. The Company
may choose not to engage in hedging transactions in the tuture. As a result, the Company may be adversely affected during periods of

declining natural gas and oil prices.
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The Company's success depends on its Chief Executive Officer and other key personnel, the loss of whom could disrupt business operations.
The Company depends to a large extent on the efforts and continued employment of the Company’s President and Chief Executive
Officer, Roger L. Jarvis, and other key personnel. If Mr. Jarvis or these other key personnel resign or become unable to continue in their

present role and if they are not adequately replaced, the Company’s business operations could be adversely affected.

The Company is subject to complex laws and regulations, including envirenmental reguiations, that can adversely affect the cost,
manner or feasibility of doing business.

Exploration for and development, production and sale of natural gas and oil in the U.S. and especially in the Gulf of Mexico are subject
to extensive federal, state and local laws and regulations, including environmental laws and regulations. The Company may be required
to make large expenditures to comply with environmentai and other governmental regulations. Matters subject to regulation include dis-
charge permits for drilling operations, drilling bonds, reports concerning operations and taxation.

Under these laws and regulations, the Company could be liable for personal injuries, property damage, oil spills, discharge of haz-
ardous materials, remediation and clean-up costs and other environmental damages. The Company does not believe that full insurance
coverage for alt potential environmental damages is available at a reasonable cost. Faiture to compty with these laws and regulations also
may result in the suspension or termination of its operations and subject the Company to administrative, civil and criminal penatties.
Moreover, these laws and regulations could change in ways that substantially increase costs. For example, Congress or the Minerals
Management Service could decide to limit exploratory drilling or natural gas production in additional areas of the Gult of Mexico.
Accordingly, any of these liabilities, penalties, suspensions, terminations or regulatory changes could materially and adversely affect the

Company's financial condition and results of operations.

Competition in the industry is intense, and the Company is smaller and has a more limited operating history than most of its
competitors in the Guif of Mexico.

The Company competes with major and independent natural gas and oil companies for property acquisitions. it also competes for the
equipment and labor required to operate and develop properties. Most of the competitors have substantially greater financial and other
resources than the Company. As a result, in the deep water where exploration is more expensive, competitors may be better able to
withstand sustained periods of unsuccesstul drilling. In addition, larger competitors may be able to absarb the burden of any changes
in federal, state and local laws and regulations more easily than the Company can, which would adversely affect its competitive posi-
tion. These competitors may be able to pay more for exploratory prospects and productive natural gas and ol properties and may be
able to define, evaluate, bid for and purchase a greater number of properties and prospects than the Company can. The Company’s
ability to explore for natural gas and oil prospects and to acquire additional properties in the future will depend on its ability to conduct
operations, to evaluate and select suitable properties and to consummate transactions in this highly competitive environment. In addi-
tion, most of the competitors have been operating in the Gulf of Mexico for a much longer time than the Company has and have demon-

strated the ability to operate through industry cycles.

The Company cannat control the activities on properties it does not operate.

Other companies operate some of the properties in which the Company has an interest. As a result, the Company has a limited ability to
“exercise influence over operations for these properties or their associated costs. The Company’s dependence on the operator and other

working interest owners for these projects and its limited ability to influence operations and associated costs could materially adversely

affect the realization of its targeted returns on capital in drilling or acquisition activities. The success and timing of drilling and develop-

ment activities on properties operated by others therefore depend upon a number of factors that are outside of the Company’s control,

including timing and amount of capital expenditures, the operator's expertise and financial resources, approval of other participants in

drilling wells and selection of technology.
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The Company may have difficufly financing its planned growth.

The Company has experienced and expects to continue to experience substantial capital expenditure and working capital needs, par-
ticularly as a result of its drilling program. In the future, the Company expects it will require additional financing, in addition to cash
generated from its operations, to fund its planned growth. The Company cannot be certain that additional financing will be available on
acceptable terms or at all. In the event additional capital resources are unavailable, the Company may curtail its drilling, development

and other activities or be forced to sell some of its assets on an untimely or unfavorable basis.

Because the Company has a limited operating history and has incurred losses from operations in the past, future operating
results are difficult to forecast. The Company’s failure to sustain profitability in the future could adversely affect the market price
of Spinnaker’s Common Stock.
The Company was formed in December 1996 and, as a result, has a limited operating history. The Company's limited operating history and
the unpredictoble results of its exploration and development strategy make it difficult to forecast operating results. In considering whether
to invest in Spinnaker's Common Stock, the limited historical financial and operating information available on which to base an evaluation
of the Company’s performance should be considered. In addition, because the Company has a limited operating history and fewer finan-
cial resources than many companies in the industry, it may be at a disadvantage in bidding for exploratory prospects and in developing
natural gas and oil properties.

The Company incurred net losses of $1.3 million, $6.9 mitlion, $2.2 million and $0.3 million in 1999, 1998, 1997 and 1998, respectively.
The Company’s development of and participation in a larger number of prospects has required and will continue to require substantial cap-
ital expenditures. The Company cannot provide assurance that it will sustain profitability or positive cash flows from operating activities in

the future. The Company’s failure to sustain profitability in the future could adversely affect the market price of Spinnaker’s Common Stock.

Warburg, Pincus Ventures, L.P ("Warburg®] owns a significant amount of Common Stock, giving it influence in corporate transactions
and other matfers, and the inferests of Warburg could differ from those of other stockholders.
At December 31, 2001, Warburg owned approximately 25 percent of the outstanding shares of Common Stock. As a result, Warburg
is in a position to significantly influence the outcome of matters requiring a stockholder vate, including the election of directors, the
adoption of an amendment to the certiticate of incorporation or bylaws and the approval of mergers and other significant corporate
transactions. Its influence over Spinnaker may delay or prevent a change of control of the Company and may adversely affect the
voling and other rights of other stockholders.

Furthermore, conflicts of interest could arise in the future between the Company and Warburg concerning, among other things,
potential competitive business activities or business opportunities. Warburg is not restricted from competitive natural gos and oil expto-
ration and production activities or investments. Warburg currently has significant equity interests in other public and private naturat

gas and oil companies. The interests of Warburg could differ from those of other stockholders.

A portion of the Company'’s outstanding shares awned by Warburg or other significant stockholders may be sold into the market in the
near future. This could cause the market price of the Common Stock to drop significantly, even if the Company's business is doing well.
The market price ot the Common Stock could drop due to sales of a large number of shares of Common Stock in the market or the per-

ception that such sales could occur. This coutd make it more difficult to raise funds through any future offering of Common Stock.

The certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that could discourage an acquisition or change of control of the Company.

The certificate of incorporation authorizes the board of directors to issue Preterred Stock without stockholder approval. f the board of
directors elects to issue Preferred Stock, it could be more difficult for a third party to acquire control of the Company, even if that change
of control might be beneficial to stockholders. In addition, provisions of the certificate of incorporation and bylaws, such as no stock-
holder action by written consent and limitations on stockholder proposals at meetings of stockholders, could also make it more difficult

tor a third party to acquire control of the Company.
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Terrorist attacks on natural gas and oil production faciiities, transportation systems and storage facilities could have a material
adverse impact on the Company's business.

Natural gas and oil production facilities, transportation systems and storage facilities could be targets of terrorist attacks. These
attacks could have a material adverse impact if certain natural gas and oil infrastructure integral to the Company’s operations

were destroyed or damaged.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires man-
agement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates include depreciation, depletion and amortization ("DD&A")
of preved natural gas and oil properties. Natural gas and oil reserve estimates, which are the basis for unit-of-production DD&A and
the full cost ceiling test, are inherently imprecise and are expected to change as future information becomes available. The Company'’s

critical accounting policies are as follows:

NATURAL GAS AND OIL PROPERTIES

The Company uses the full cost method of accounting for its investment in natural gas and oil properties. Under this method, all acqui-
sition, exploration and development costs, including certain related employee costs, incurred for the purpose of exploring for natural
gas and oil are capitalized. Such amounts include the cost of drilling and equipping productive wells, dry hole costs, [ease acquisition
costs, delay rentals and costs related to such activities. Exclusive of field-level costs, Spinnaker capitalized $5.1 million, $3.8 million and
$2.5 million of general and administrative costs in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. These capitalized costs are directly related to explo-
ration activities and include salaries, employee benefits, costs of consulting services and other related expenses. Costs associated with
production and general corporate activities are expensed in the period incurred. Interest costs related to unproved properties and prop-
erties under development are also capitalized to natural gas and oil properties. Spinnaker capitalized interest of $0, $17,000 and
$966.000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Sales of natural gas and oil properties, whether or not being amortized currently, are
accounted for as adjustments of capitalized costs, with no gain or loss recognized, unless such adjustments would significantly alter
the relationship between capitalized costs and proved reserves of natural gas and oil.

The Company computes the provision for DD&A of natural gas and oil properties using the unit-of-production method based upon
production and estimates of proved reserve quantities. Unevaluated costs and related carrying costs are excluded from the amortiza-
tion base until the properties associated with these costs are evaluated. In addition to costs associated with evaluated properties, the
amortization base includes estimated future development costs and dismantlement, restoration and abandonment costs, net of esti-
mated salvage values. Certain future development costs may be excluded from amortization when incurred in connection with major
development projects expected to entail significant costs to ascertain the quantities of proved reserves attributable to the properties
under development. The amounts that may be excluded are applicable portions of the costs that relate to the major development project
and have not previously been included in the amortization base and the estimated future expenditures associated with the deveiop-
ment project. Such costs may be excluded from costs to be amortized until the earlier determination of whether additional reserves are
proved or impairment occurs. The Company has excluded from amortization a portion of the estimated future expenditures associated
with common development costs on its deep water discovery at Front Runner based on existing proved reserves to total proved reserves
expected o be established upon completion of the deep water project.

Capitalized costs of natural gas and oil properties, net of accumulated DD&A and related deferred taxes, are limited to the estimated
future net cash flows from proved natural gas and oil reserves, including the effects of hedging activities, discounted at 10 percent, plus
the lower of cost or fair value of unproved properties, as adjusted for related income tax effects {the full cost ceiling). If capitalized costs

exceed the full cost ceiling, the excess is charged to write-down of natural gas and oil properties in the quarter in which the excess occurs.
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Given the volatility of natural gas and il prices, it is reasonably possible that the Company’s estimate of discounted future net cash
flows from proved natural gas and oil reserves will change in the near term. If natural gas and oil prices decline, even if for only a short
period of time, or if the Company has downward revisions to its estimated proved reserves, it is possible that write-downs of natural gas
and oil properties could occur in the future.

The costs associated with unevaluated leasehold acreage, unamortized seismic data, wells chrently drilling and capitalized inter-
est are not initially included in the amortization base. Leasehold costs are either transferred to the amortization base with the costs of
drilling the related well or are assessed quarterly for possible impairment or reduction in value. Leasehold costs are transferred to the
amortization base i a reduction in value has occurred. Of the $102.9 million of net unproved property costs at December 31, 2001 excluded
from the amortizable base, net costs of $19.7 million, $42.5 million and $12.3 million were incurred in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively,
and $28.4 million was incurred prior to 1999. The majority of the costs will be evaluated over the next four years.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB’) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS”) No,
143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No. 143 requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obli-
gation be recognized in the period in which it is incurred with the associated asset retirement costs being capitalized as a part of the
carrying amount of the long-lived asset. SFAS No. 143 also includes disclosure requirements that provide a description of asset retire-
ment obligations and reconciliation of changes in the components of those obligations. The Company currently records its plugging and
abandonment costs, net of salvage value, with respect to its natural gas and oil properties as additional DD&A expense using the units-
of-production method. This statement will require the Company to recognize a liability for the fair value of its plugging and abandon-
ment liability, excluding salvage value, with the associated costs as part of its natural gas and oil property balance. The Company is

evaluating the future financial effects of adopting SFAS No. 143 and expects to adopt the standard effective January 1, 2003.

COMMODITY PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

On January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133, as amended, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”
SFAS No. 133 established accounting and reporting standards requiring that all derivative instruments be recorded in the balance sheet
as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value. SFAS No. 133 requires that changes in a derivative’s fair value be realized
currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. Accounting for qualifying hedges allows derivative gains and
losses to offset related results on the hedged item in the statement of operations and requires a company to formally document, des-

ignate and assess the effectiveness of transactions that qualify for hedge accounting.

STOCK OPTIONS

In October 1995, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” SFAS No. 123 encourages, but does not
require, companies to record compensation cost for stock-based employee compensation plans at fair value. The Company has chosen
to account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options is measured
as the excess, if any, of the fair value of the Common Stock at the date of the grant over the amount an employee must pay to acquire
the Common Stock. See Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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RELATED PARTIES

The Company paid $17.4 million in 2001 to affiliates of Baker Hughes Incorporated (‘Baker Hughes"), an oilfield services company. Mr.
Michael E. Wiley, a director of Spinnaker, serves as Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President ot Baker Hughes. The
Company paid $83,000 and $528,000 in 2001 and 2000, respectively, to Cooper Cameron Corporation ("Cooper Cameron”), an oilfield
services company. Mr. Sheldon R. Erikson, a director of Spinnaker, serves as Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and
President of Cooper Cameron. The Company purchases oilfield goods, equipment and services from Baker Hughes, Cooper Cameron
and other companies in the ordinary course of business. Spinnaker believes that these transactions are at arms-length and the charges
and fees that it pays for such goods, equipment and services are competitive with the charges and fees of other companies providing

oilfield goods, equipment and services to the oil and gas exploration and production industry.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth certain operating information with respect to the natural gas and oil operations of the Company:
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
PRODUCTION:
Natura! gas (MMcf) 51,234 28,845 11,962
Oil and condensate (MBbis} 310 225 180
Total (MMcfe) 53,094 30,194 13,044
1 REVENUES (in thousands):
Natural gas $212,238 $133,264 $ 29,839
Qil and condensate 7,718 6,775 3,668
Net hedging income (loss) {9,580} {18,656) 751
Total $210,376 $121,383 $ 34,258
AVERAGE SALES PRICE PER UNIT:
Natural gas revenues from production {per Mcf) $ 4L $ 82 $ 249
- Effects of hedging activities {per Mcf) {0.18) {059 0.08
Average price (per Mci) $ 39 $ 403 $ 257
Gil and condensate revenues from production {per Bbl} $ 2490 $ 3014 $ 2033
Effects of hedging activities (per Bbl) - (716) (0.57}
Average price (per Bbl) $ 2490 $ 2298 $ 19.76
“““ Total revenues from production {per Mcfe) $ L1 $ 464 $ 257
Effects of hedging activities (per Mcfe) {0.18) {0.62) 0.08
Total average price (per Mcte) $ 39 $ 402 $ 263
EXPENSES (per Mcle):
Lease operating expenses $ 023 $ 030 $ 04
Depreciation, depletion and amortization — natural gas and oil properties $ 160 $ 157 $ 159

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS {in thousands) $100,285 $ 57,264 $ 1335
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AS COMPARED TO THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Revenues increased $89.0 mitlion in 2001 compared fo 2000. Excluding the effects of hedging activities, naturat gas revenues increased
$79.0 million and oil and condensate revenues increased $0.9 million. Losses resulting from hedging activities decreased by $9.1 mil-
lion in 2001 compared to 2000, thereby improving revenues.

Production increased approximately 22.9 Bcfe in 2001 compared to 2000. Average daily production in 2001 was 145 MMcfe com-
pared to 82 MMcfe in 2000. Natural gas production volumes increased 22.4 Bcf, contributing $123.9 million of the increase in natural
gas revenues, excluding the effects of hedging activities, offset in part by $44.9 million related to lower average natural gas prices in
2001 compared to 2000. Oil and condensate production volumes increased 85 MBbls, contributing $2.8 million of the increase in oil and
condensate revenues, offset in part by $1.9 million related o decreases in average oil and condensate prices. The rapid production
declines of certain producing wells, combined with pipeline-mandated curtailments of certain facilities, shut-ins related to facility
upgrades and tess than anticipated results from workovers, resulted in tower production in the fourth quarter of 2001 compared to the
prior quarter. The Company expects a further decline in production during the first quarter of 2002.

Lease operating expenses increased $3.1 million in 2001 compared to 2000. Of the total increase in lease operating expenses, $1.0
million was primarity related to workover activities in 2001 and $0.4 million was attributable to wells on new blocks that commenced pro-
duction subsequent to December 31, 2000. The lease operating expense rate decreased 23 percent to $0.23 per Mcfe in 2001 compared
to 2000 primarily due to increased production coupled with continued efficiencies gained in core aperating areas, including the High
Island 202 area.

DD8A increased $37.7 million in 2001 compared to 2000. The change in DD&A was attributable to an increase in production of 22.8
Befe and a slightly higher DDA rate, which impacted DD8A by $36.0 million and $1.7 million, respectively.

General ond administrative expenses increased $2.1 million in 2001 compared to 2000. The increase in general and administra-
tive expenses was primarily due to higher employment-related costs resutting from the Company’s recent growth.

The Company had in place both financial hedge and physical contracts with Enron North America Corp. at the time it filed for bank-
ruptcy in December 2001. Spinnaker did not receive payment for fixed price swap contracts totaling $2.1 million, intended to hedge
December 2001 natural gas sales, and $1.4 million related to November 2001 natural gas production sold to Enron entities. The Company
recorded a net reserve of $3.1 million related to these receivables and has no other exposure to Enron Corp. and its subsidiaries.

Interest income increased $0.7 million in 2001 compared to 2000 primarily due to investment income associated with proceeds from
the Company’s public offering of Common Stock completed on August 16, 2000. Interest expense decreased $0.4 million in 2001 com-
pared to 2000. The Company had no outstanding borrowings in 2001 compared to 2000.

Income tax provision increased $16.4 million in 2001 compared to 2000 and primarily relates to deferred income taxes accrued at
a 36 percent effective tax rate in 2001 and a 35 percent effective tax rate in 2000.

The Company recognized net income of $86.2 million, or $2.45 per basic share and $2.34 per diluted share, in 2001 compared to
net income of $38.6 million, or $1.70 per basic share and $1.61 per diluted share, in 2000.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AS COMPARED 7O THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Revenues, including the effects of hedging activities, increased $87.1 million in 2000 compared to 1999. Excluding the effects of hedg-
ing activities, natural gas revenues increased $103.4 million and oil and condensate revenues increased $3.1 miilion in 2000 compared
to 1999. Net natural gas and oil hedging losses increased $19.4 million in 2000 compared fo 1999.

Production increased approximately 17.2 Befe in 2000 compared to 1999. Average daily production in 2000 was 82 MMcfe compared
to 36 MMcte in 1999. Natural gas production volumes increased 16.9 Bci, primarily due to wells on 11 new blocks which commenced pro-
duction in 2000, contributing $93.5 million of the increase in natural gas revenues, excluding the effects of hedging activities. Average natural
gas prices increased, contributing $3.9 million of the increase in natural gas revenues. 0il and condensate production volumes increased
approximately 45 MBbls, primarily due to wells on 11 new blocks which commenced production in 2000, contributing $2.4 million of the
increase in oil and condensate revenues, excluding the effects of hedging activities. Average oil and condensate prices increased, con-

tributing $0.7 million of the increase in oil and condensate revenues,
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Lease operating expenses increased $3.6 million in 2000 compared to 1999. Of the total increase in lease operating expenses, $4.1
million was attributable to wells on 11 new blocks which commenced production in 2000, offset in part by $0.5 million, primarily related
to major workover activities in 1999. Lease operating expenses per Mcfe in 1999 included approximately $0.13 per Mcfe associated with
workovers on two wells and well control activities on another well. Lease operating expenses per Mcte in 2000 included approximately
$0.03 per Mcfe associated with workovers on four wells.

DD8&A increased $26.8 million in 2000 compared to 1999. The increase in DD&A was primarily attributable to the 17.2 Befe increase
in production volumes in 2000. The DD&A rate in 2000 decreased slightly from the DD&A rate in 1989,

General and administrative expenses increased $2.5 million in 2000 compared to 1999. The increase in general and administra-
tive expenses was primarily due to employment-related costs associated with personnel additions during 1999 and 2000.

Interest income increased $2.4 million in 2000 compared to 1999 primarily due to investment income associated with proceeds from
the Company's pubiic offering of Common Stock completed on August 16, 2000. Interest expense, net of capitaiized interest, decreased
$21 million in 2000 compared to 1999. The Company had substantially less outstanding borrowings in 2000 compared to 1999. At
December 31, 2000, the Company had no outstanding borrowings.

An incorme tax provision of $20.9 million was recorded in 2000 based on the Company's transition to profitability in 2000. No income
tax benefit was recorded in 1998 due to the uncertainty of future realization as the Company had not established a history of operat-
ing income.

The Company recognized net income of $38.6 million, or $1.70 per basic share and $1.61 per diluted share, in 2000 compared to
a net loss of $1.3 million in 1999. After dividends of $7.9 million on Preferred Stock that is no longer outstanding, the Company recog-

nized a net loss available to common stockholders of $9.2 million, or a loss of $1.11 per basic and diluted share, in 1999.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company has experienced and expects to continue to experience substantial capital requirements, primarily due to its active explo-
ration and development programs in the Gulf of Mexico. Capital expenditures in 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $288.8 million, $163.7 mil-
lion and $85.1 million, respectively. Spinnaker has capital expenditure plans for 2002 totaling approximately $250 million. During 2001,
Spinnaker participated in a significant deep water oil discovery, Front Runner, with a 25 percent non;operator working interest. The
Company participated in five consecutive successful wells and sidetroctfs in testing the reservoirs on these blocks. Spinnaker has
incurred capital expenditures associated with Front Runner of approximately $30 million through December 31, 2001 and expects to
incur an aggregate of approximately $110 million in future development costs during 2002 and 2003. The 2002 capital expenditure plans
include approximately $40 million related to the Front Runner production facilities. The Company is considering various financing alter-
natives for the cost of these facilities, including a lease.

Natural gas and oil prices have a significant impact on the Company’s cash flows available for capital expenditures and its ability
to borrow and raise additionat capital. The amount the Company can borrow under its Credit Faciity is subject to periodic re-determi-
nation based in part on changing expectations of future prices. Lower prices may atso reduce the amount of natural gas and oil that
the Company can economically produce. Additionally, the rapid production declines of certain producing wells, combined with pipeline-
mandated curtailments of certain facilities, shut-ins related to tacility upgrades and less than anticipated results from workovers, resulted
in lower production in the fourth quarter of 2001 compared to the prior quarter. The Company expects a further decline in production
during the first quarter of 2002.

While the Company believes that working capital, cash flows from operations and available borrowings under its Credit Facility will
be sufficient to meet its capital requirements in the next twelve months, additional debt or equity financing may be required in the future
to fund its growth and exploration and development programs. In the event additional capital resources are unavailable, the Company

may curtail its drilling, development and other activities or be forced to sell some of its assets on an untimely or unfavorable basis.
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Spinnaker has an effective shelf registration statement relating to the potential public offer and sale by the Company or certain
affiliates of up to $300.0 million of any combination of debt securities, preferred stock, common stock, warrants, stock purchase con-
tracts and trust preferred securities from time to time or when financing needs arise. The registration statement does not provide assur-

ance that the Company will or could selt any such securities.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased $49.8 million to $14.1 million at December 31, 2001 from $63.9 million at December 31, 2000.
The decrease in cash and cash equivalents resulted from $266.4 million used in investing activities, ofiset in part by $209.4 million pro-

vided by operating activities and $7.2 million provided by financing activities.

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provided by operating activities in 2001 increased 155 percent to $209.4 million from $82.0 million in 2000, primarily as a result
of higher natural gas production. Cash flow from operations depends on the Company’s ability to increase production through its explo-
ration and development programs and the prices of natural gas and ocil. The Company has made significant investments to expand its
operations in the Gulf of Mexico. These investments have resulted in an increase in the Company’s average daily production.

The Company sells its natural gas and oil production under fixed or floating market price contracts. Spinnaker enters into hedg-
ing arrangements from time to time to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in natural gas and oil prices and achieve more predictable
cash flow. However, these contracts also limit the benefits the Company would realize if prices increase. See "Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk.”

The Company's cash flow from operations also depends on its ability to manage working capital, including accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The decrease in accounts receivable of $21.5 million was primarily due to a decrease in accrued
natural gas and il sales of $21.6 miltion as a result of substantially lower natural gas prices in December 2001 compared to December
2000, partially offset by a net increase in all other receivables of $0.1 million. The increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities of
$18.8 million was primarily due to costs associated with increased drilling and development activities at the end of 2001 compared to the
end of 2000, including non-cash activity of $14.8 million for property related payables and $7.2 million related to the tax effect of the fair

market value of current derivatives.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash used in investing activities in 2001 increased 48 percent to $266.4 million from $180.2 million in 2000, primarily due to higher
capital expenditures. Natural gas and oil capital expenditures in 2001 were $287.2 million compared to $161.8 million in 2000. The
Company also purchased short-term investments of $29.6 million and sold short-term investments of $52.0 miltion.

The Company drilled 35 wells in 2001, 19 of which were successful. In 2000, the Company drilled 28 wells, 16 of which were suc-
cessiul. Since inception and through December 31, 2001, the Company has drilled 94 wells, 56 of which were successful, representing a
success rate of approximately 60 percent.

The Company has capital expenditure plans for 2002 totaling approximately $250 million, primarily for costs related to exploration
and development programs. The 2002 budget includes development costs that are contingent on the success of exploratory drilling. The
Company does not anticipate any significant abandonment or dismantlement costs in 2002. Actual levels of capital expenditures may
vary due to many factors, including drilling results, natural gas and oil prices, the availability of capitatl, industry conditions, acquisi-
tions, decisions of operators and other prospect owners and the prices of drilling rig dayrates and other oilfield goods and services.
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net cash provided by financing activities in 2001 decreased 95 percent to $7.2 million from $141.6 million in 2000, primarily due to proceeds from
a Common Stock offering in 2000 of $138.9 miltion. The net cash provided by financing activities in 2001 related to stock option exercises.

On December 28, 2001, the Company completed an unsecured $200.0 million Credit Facility with a group of seven banks. The three-
year facility has an initial borrowing base of $125.0 miliion that is re-determined on April 30 and September 30 each year. The banks
and Spinnaker also have the option to request one additional re-determination each year. The Company has the option to elect to use
a base interest rate as described below or the LIBOR rate plus, for each such rate, a spread based on the percent of the borrowing
base used ot that time. The base interest rate under the Credit Facility is a fluctuating rate of interest equal to the higher of either the
Toronto-Dominion Bank’s base rate for dollar advances made in the United States or the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5 percent per
annum. The Credit Facility contains covenants and restrictive provisions. At Becember 31, 2001, the Company was in compliance with
the covenants and had no outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility. As of March 7, 2002, the Company had outstanding bor-
rowings of $21.0 million under the Credit Facility. For a description of the covenants and restrictive provisions in the Credit Facility, see

Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The Company {eases administrative offices, office equipment and oil and gas equipment under non-cancelable operating leases. In addi-
tion, the Company has agreed to purchase $2.0 million of seismic-related services from PGS prior to December 31, 2002. Through
December 31, 2001, the Company paid PGS a total of approximately $1.3 million for these services. The Company had no debt or capi-
tal leases outstanding as of December 31, 2001. The Company has incurred obligations in the ordinary course of business under pur-
chase and service agreements which are not inciuded in the table below. Obligations under operating leases and the Data Agreement

as of December 31, 2001 are as follows:

Payments Due by Period

Less
than 1 1-3 45 After 5
Total Year Years Years Years
Operating leases $ 6914 $ 1222 $ 3,858 $ 183 $ -
Unconditional Data Agreement obligations 655 655 — — —
Total $ 7569 $ 1877 $ 3858 $ 1834 $ -
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Company is exposed to changes in interest rates. Changes in interest rates affect the interest earned on cash, cash equivalents
and short-term investments and the interest rate paid on borrowings under the Credit Facility. The Company does not currently use
interest rate derivative instruments to manage exposure to interest rate changes, but may do so in the future.

COMMOQOBITY PRICE RISK
The Company’s revenues, profitability and future growth depend substantially on prevailing prices for naturat gas and oil. Prices also
atiect the amount of cash flow available for capital expenditures and the Company's ability to borrow and raise additional capital. Lower
prices may also reduce the amount of natural gas and oil that the Company can economically produce. The Company sells its natural
gas and oil production under fixed or floating market price contracts. Spinnaker enters into hadging arrangements from time to time to
reduce its exposure to fluctuations in natural gas and oil prices and to achieve more predictable cash flow. However, these contracts
also limit the benefits the Company would realize if prices increase. These financial arrangements take the form of swap contracts or
costless collars and are placed with major trading counterparties the Company believes represent minimum credit risks. Spinnaker can-
not provide assurance that these trading counterparties will not become credit risks in the future. The Company had in place both finan-
cial hedge and physical contracts with Enron North America Corp. at the time it filed for bankrupicy in December 2001. Spinnaker did
not receive payment as required under these contracts. Under its current hedging practice, the Company generally does not hedge
more than 66% percent of its estimated twelve-month production quantities without the prior approval of the risk management commit-
tee of the board of directors.

The Company enters into New York Mercantile Exchange {"NYMEX") related swap contracts and collar arrangements trom time to time.
The Company's swap contracts will settle based on the reported settlement price on the NYMEX for the last trading day of each month for
natural gas. In a swap transaction, the counterparty is required to make a payment to the Company for the difference between the fixed
price and the settlement price if the settlement price is below the fixed price. The Company is required to make a payment to the counter-
party for the difference between the fixed price and the settlement price if the settlement price is above the fixed price. Some of the mas-
ter agreements require the Company to make margin payments to counterparties when net exposure exceeds a certain threshold. As of

March 7, 2002, Spinnaker’s commodity price risk management positions in fixed price natural gas swap contracts were as follows:

Average Daily Weighted Average

Period Volume (MMBtu) Price Per MMBtu
First Quarter 2002 100,000 $ 323
Second Quarter 2002 93,407 3.20
Third Quarter 2002 80,000 337
Fourth Quarter 2002 76,685 358
Full Year 2003 25,000 3.27

Based upon the Company’s assessment of its derivative contracts at December 31, 2001, it reported (i) a net current asset of $20.6
million and non-current asset of $1.7 million and (i) accumulated other comprehensive income of $14.5 million, net of income taxes of
$7.8 million. The Company recognized no ineffective component of the derivatives in earnings in 2001. In connection with monthly set-
tlements, the Company recognized net hedging losses in revenues of $3.6 million and $18.7 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Based on future natural gas prices as of December 31, 2001, the Company would reclassify $20.6 million from accumultated other com-
prehensive income to earnings within the next 12 months. The amounts ultimately reclassified into earnings will vary due to changes

in the fair value of the open derivative contracts prior to settlement.
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TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS OF
SPINNAKER EXPLORATION COMPANY:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Spinnaker Exploration Company (a Delaware corperation) and
subsidiaries, as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, equity and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financiaf statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of Spinnaker Exploration Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States.

As explained in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2001, the Company changed its method of

accounting for its derivative instruments.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Houston, Texas
February 15, 2002
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SPINNAKER EXPLORATION COMPANY

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA)

As of December 31, 2001 2000
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,061 $ 63910
Short-term investments - 22,387
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtiul accounts ot $3 059 and $0
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively 24128 45,584
Hedging assets 20,593 -
Other 3,664 6,402
Total current assets 62,447 138,293

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT;
Oit and gas, on the basis of full-cost accounting:

Proved properties 575,800 293,002
Unproved properties and properties under development, not being amortized 102,881 83,165

Other 7,245 5,642
685,932 381,809

Less ~ Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization (163,359) (77.428)
Total property and equipment 522,573 304,381

OTHER ASSETS 2,296 30
Total assets $ 587.316 $ 442,704

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable $ 32383 $ 28616
Accrued liabitities and other 50,718 35,672 ‘
Total current liabilities 83,101 64,288 %
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES ' 45,723 17157
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 11}
EQUITY.

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and
; outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively -~ -
] Common stock, $0.01 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized; 27,308,912 shares issued and
] 27,293,264 shares outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 26,494,593 shares issued and 26,476,817

shares outstanding at December 31, 2000 ‘ 273 265

Additional paid-in capital 365,993 349,506

Retained earnings - 77758 11,532

Less: Treasury stock, at cost, 15,648 and 17,776 shares at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively (39) (44)

i Accumulated other comprehensive income 14,507 -
Total equity 458,492 361,259

Totat liabilities and equity $ 587316 $ 442,704

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SPINNAKER EXPLORATION COMPANY

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
REVENUES $210,376 $121.383 $ 34,258
EXPENSES:

Lease operating expenses 12132 9,009 5,411

Oepreciation, depletion and amortization — natural gas and oil properties 85,059 47,451 20,788

Depreciation and amortization — other 398 309 213

General and administrative 9,443 7,350 4,860

Charges related to Enron bankruptcy 3,059 - -

Stock appreciation rights expense — - 1,651

Totat expenses 110,091 64,119 32,923

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 100,285 57,264 1,335
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):

Interest income 3,574 2,908 528

Interest expense, net (381} {748) {2,805)

Total other income {expense) 3193 2,160 (2,277

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES 103,478 59,424 (942)

Income tax provision 37,252 20,858 -
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 66,226 38,566 {942)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (Note 1) - - (395)
NET INCOME (LOSS) 66,226 38,566 (1,337)
ACCRUAL OF DIVIDENDS ON PREFERRED STOCK - - {7.911)
NET INCOME (LOSS) AVAILABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLBERS $ 66,226 $ 38,586 $ (9,248)
BASIC INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE:

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 245 $ 170 $ {1.06)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - — (0.05}
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE $ 245 $ 170 $ )
DILUTED INCOME (LOSS} PER COMMON SHARE.

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 234 $ 161 $ {1.06)

Cumulative etfect of change in accounting principle — - (0.03)
NET INCOME {LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE $ 23 $ 161 $ 1)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING:

Basic 27,079 22,879 8,355

Diluted 28,360 24,011 8,355

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SPINNAKER EXPLORATION COMPANY
Consolidated Statements of Equity
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARES AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE DATA)
Retained Accumulated Compre-
Additional Earnings Other hensive
Shares Issued Par Value Paid-in  (Accumulated  Treasury Comprehensive Total Income
Preterred Commeon Preferred Common Capital Deficit) Stock Income Equity {Loss)
Balance, December 31, 1998 3,030,820 4,082200 § 3 % 20 ¢ 74649 $(17.786) $ - 3 - % 56913
Net loss - - - - - (1,337 - - (1337)  $ (1337
Comprehensive loss $ (1.337)
[——]
Common stock split - - - 20 (20) - — - —
Common stock issuance —  9,076,09% - 91 111,260 - - - 111,351
B Exercise of stock options - 5,808 - - 29 - - - 29
Preterred stock dividends
($3.00 per share) - - - - - (7911} - - (7911)
. Conversion of preferred
: stock to common stock (3,030,920 6,061,840 (30) 61 31) - - - -
i Reinvestment of preferred
) stock dividends into
' common stock — 1200248 - 12 16,299 -~ - - 16,311
Stock compensation costs - — - - 150 - - -~ 150
Stock appreciation
. rights termination - - - - 1651 - - - 1651
Treasury stock - - -~ - - - {55) - (55)
] Balance, December 31, 1999 — 20426192 - 204 203,987 {27,034) (55) - 177,102
‘ Net income - - - - - 38,566 - - 38566 $ 38566
Comprehensive income $ 38566
Common stock issuance — 5,600,000 - 56 138,342 - - - 138,398
Exercise of stock options — 462,478 - 5 3195 - 11 - 3,211
Employer contributions
J to 401(k) Plan - 5,923 - - 148 - - - 148
] Stock compensation costs - - - - 158 - - — 158
Tox benefit associated with
exercise of non-qualified
stock options - - - - 3,676 - - - 3676
Balance, December 31, 2000 — 26,494,593 - 265 349,506 11,532 {44) - 361,259
Net income - - - - - 66,226 — — 66,226 $ 66,226
Other comprehensive
income, net of tax:
Cumulative effect of
accounting change
for derivative financiat
instruments - - - - - - - (27,126) {27,126} (27,126}

Net change in fair

value of derivative

financial instruments - - - - - - - 35,502 35,502 35,502
Financial derivative

settiements reclassed

to income - - - - - — — 6,131 6,131 6,131
Comprehensive income $ 80,733
- —————]
Exercise of stock options - 808,863 - 8 7142 - 5 - 7.155
Employer contributions
to 401k} Plan - 5.456 — - 216 - - - 216
Stock compensation costs - - — —_ e - - - 114

Tax benefit associated with
exercise of non-qualified
stock options - -~ - - 9,015 - - - 9,015

Balance, December 31, 2001 — 27308912 $ - $ 273 $365,993 $ 77,758 $ (339 % 14,507 $ 458,492

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SPINNAKER EXPLORATION COMPANY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(IN THOUSANDS}

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES.
Net income {loss) $ 66,226 $ 38,566 $ (1,337)
Adjustments to reconcile net income ({loss) to net cash provided by
{used in) operating activities:

Depreciation, depletion and amortization 85,457 47,760 21,001
Deferred income tax expense 36,977 20,833 —
Other . 549 306 —
Stock appreciation rights expense - - 1,651
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - - 395
Change in components of working capital:

Accounts receivable 21,665 (34,799) (6,974)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (3,216) 14,861 (636)
Other current assets and other 1,979 {5,523) 805
Net cash provided by operating activities 209,437 82,004 14,905

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Oil and gas properties {302,046) {198,787) {78,894)
Change in property related payables 14,821 36,976 {5,2%1)
Proceeds from sale of natural gas and oil assets - 5,971 -
Purchases of other property and equipment (1,603) (1,928) (916)
Purchases of short-term investments (29,627) (22,387) -
Sales of short-term investments 52,014 - -
Net cash used in investing activities (266,441) {180,155} {85,101}

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTVITIES:
Proceeds from borrowings - 17,000 53,000
Payments on borrowings - {17,000) {72,000)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock - 138,936 108,720
- Commeon stock issuance costs - {538) (1,109)
- Proceeds from exercise of stock options 7155 3211 2%
Preferred stock dividends - - (78)
Acquisition of treasury stock -~ - (55)
Net cash provided by financing activities 7,155 141,809 88,507
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (49,849) 43,458 18,311
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 63,910 20,452 2,141
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 14,081 $ 63910 $ 20.52

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES.
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 190 $ 380 $ 2,591
Cash paid for income taxes, net 275 25 -

SUPPLEMENTAL NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
‘ Reinvestment of preferred dividends payable into common stock $ — $ - $ 16,311
Issuance of common stock for amended seismic data rights — - 2,900

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Spinnaker Exploration Company (*Spinnaker” or the "Company”) was fermed in 1996 and engages in the exploration, development and
production of natural gas and oil properties in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico.
On September 28, 1999, the Company priced its initial public offering of 8,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per
share {"Common Stock”), and commenced trading the following day. After payment of underwriting discounts and commissions, the
Company received net proceeds of $108.7 million on October 4, 1399. With a portion of the proceeds, the Company retired all outstanding
debt of $72.0 million. In connection with the initial public offering, the Company converted all outstanding Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock, par value $0.01 per share ("Preferred Stock”), into shares of Common Stock, and certain shareholders reinvested preferred div- ‘
idends payable ot $16.3 million into shares ot Common Stock. j
A summary of significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements
is set forth below:

GENERAL
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in the United States and pursuant 1o the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission {the "Commission”).

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the activities and accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, all of

which are wholly owned. All significant intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires man-

agement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
g assets and liabilities at the date ot the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
pericd. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates include depreciation, depletion and amortization {* BD3A")
of proved natural gas and oil properties. Natural gas and oil reserve estimates, which are the basis for unit-of-production DD&A and

the full cost ceiling test, are inherently imprecise and are expected to change as future information becomes available.

- CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments include highly liquid investments in commercial paper with maturities greater than three months when purchased.

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets include unamortized debt financing costs of $328,000 and $114,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Other non-current assets include unamortized debt financing costs of $554,000 at December 31, 2001. These costs are amortized to inter-
est expense over the three-year term of the related credit facility. Amortization of these and other debt financing costs included in
interest expense was $219,000, $354,000 and $576,000 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. See Note 3.
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NATURAL GAS AND OIL PROPERTIES

The Company uses the full cost method of accounting for its investment in natural gas and oil properties. Under this method, all acqui-
sition, exploration and development costs, including certain related employee costs, incurred for the purpose of exploring for natural
gas and oil are capitalized. Such amounts include the cost of drilling and equipping productive wells, dry hole costs, lease acquisition
costs, delay rentals and costs related to such activities, Exclusive of field-level costs, Spinnaker capitatized $5.1 million, $3.8 million and
$2.5 miltion of general and administrative costs in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. These capitalized costs are directly related to
exploration activities and include salaries, employee benefits, costs of consulting services and other related expenses. Costs associated
with production and general corporate activities are expensed in the period incurred. Interest costs related to unproved properties and
properties under development are also capitalized to natural gas and oil properties. Spinnaker capitalized interest of $0, $17,000 and
$966,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1998, respectively. Sales of natural gas and oil properties, whether or not being amortized currently, are
accounted for as adjustments of capitalized costs, with no gain or loss recognized, unless such adjustments would significantly alter
the relationship between capitalized costs and proved reserves of natural gas and oil.

The Company computes the provision for DO&A of natural gas and oil properties using the unit-of-production method based upon pro-
duction and estimates of proved reserve quantities. Unevaluated costs and related carrying costs are excluded from the amortization base
until the properties associated with these costs are evaluated. In addition to costs associated with evaluated properties, the amortization
base includes estimated future development costs and dismantlement, restoration and abandonment costs, net of estimated salvage vai-
ues. Certain future development costs may be excluded from amortization when incurred in connection with major development projects
expected to entail significant costs to ascertain the quantities of proved reserves attributable to the properties under development. The
amounts that may be excluded are applicable portions of the costs that relate to the major development project and have not previously
been included in the amortization base and the estimated future expenditures associated with the development project. Such costs may
be excluded from costs to be amortized until the earlier determination of whether additional reserves are proved or impairment occurs.
The Company has excluded from amortization a portion of the estimated future expenditures associated with common development costs
on one of its deep water discoveries based on existing proved reserves to total proved reserves expected to be established upon comple-
tion of the deep water project.

Capitalized costs of natural gas and oil properties, net of accumulated DD&A and related deferred taxes, are limited to the estimated
future net cash flows from proved natural gas and oif reserves, including the effects of hedging activities, discounted at 10 percent, plus
the tower of cost or fair value of unproved properties, as adjusted for related income tax effects (the full cost ceiling). If capitalized costs
exceed the full cost ceiling, the excess is charged to write-down of natural gas and oil properties in the quarter in which the excess occurs.
Given the volatility of natural gas and oil prices, it is reasonably possible that the Company’s estimate of discounted future net cash flows
from proved natural gas and ail reserves will change in the near term. If natural gas and oil prices decline, even if for only a short period
of time, or if the Company has downward revisicns to its estimated proved reserves, it is possible that write-downs of natural gas and oil
properties could occur in the future.

The costs associated with unevaluated leasehold acreage, unamortized seismic data, wells currently drilling and capitalized interest
are not initially included in the amortization base. Leasehold costs are either transferred to the amortization base with the costs of drilling
the related well or are assessed quarterly for possible impairment or reduction in value. Leasehold costs are transferred to the amorti-
zation base it a reduction in value has occurred. Of the $102.9 million of net unproved property costs at December 31, 2001 excluded
from the amortizable base, net costs of $19.7 million, $42.5 million and $12.3 million were incurred in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respec-
tively, and $28.4 million was incurred prior to 1899. The majority of the costs will be evatuated over the next four years.

Substantially all the Company’s exploration activities are conducted jointly with others and, accordingly, the natural gas and oit

property balances reflect only its proportionate interest in such activities.
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OTHER PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Other property and equipment consists of computer hardware and software, office furniture and leasehold improvements. The Company
is depreciating these assets using the straight-line method based upon estimated usetul lives ranging from three to five years.

ORGANIZATION COSTS

In April 1998, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued Statement of Position 98-5 ("SOP 98-5"}, "Reporting on the
Costs of Start-Up Activities,” which requires that costs for start-up activities and organization costs be expensed as incurred and not
capitalized as had previously been allowed. SOP 98-5 was effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after 1998. The
Company adopted this policy in the first quarter of 1999 and recorded a charge related to this accounting change of $395,000 in con-
junction with the write-off of previously capitatized organization costs.

REVENUE RECOGNITION POLICY

The Company records as revenue only that portion of production sold and delivered and allocable to its ownership interest in the related
property. imbatances arise when a purchaser takes delivery of more or less volume from a property than the Company's actual inter-
est in the production from that property. Such imbalances are reduced either by subsequent recoupment of over-and-under detiveries
or by cash settlement, as required by applicable contracts. Under-imbalances included in accounts receivable were $706,000 and
$458,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Over-imbalances included in accrued liabilities were $650,000 and $720,000 ai
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

INCOME TAXES

Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {"SFAS®) No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes,” deferred income taxes are rec-
ognized at each year-end for the future tax consequences ot differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
financial reparting amounts based on enacted tax lows and statutory tax rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are
expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount

expected to be realized.

STOCK OPTIONS

In October 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB*) issued SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”
SFAS No. 123 encourages, but does not require, companies to record compensation cost for stock-based employee compensation plans
at fair value. The Company has chosen to account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed in
Accounting Principles Board ("APB") Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock lssued to Employees,” and related interpretations.
Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options is measured as the excess, if any, of the fair value of the Common Stock at the date

of the grant over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the Common Stock. See Note 6.

STOCK SPLIT

On September 1, 1999, the Company declared a two-for-one stock split on the-Common Stock (the "Stock Split"). All references to the
number of common shares and per share amounts elsewhere in the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto have been
restated as appropriate to reflect the effect of the Stock Split for all periods presented.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONGUNCEMENTS

On January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133, as amended, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”
SFAS No. 133 established accounting and reporting standards requiring that all derivative instruments be recorded in the balance sheet
as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value. SFAS No. 133 requires that changes in a derivative's fair value be realized cur-
rently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. Accounting for qualifying hedges allows derivative gains and losses
to offset related results on the hedged item in the statement of operations and requires a company to formally document, designate and
assess the effectiveness of transactions that qualify for hedge accounting. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 133 on January 1, 2001, the
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Company designated its open derivative contracts as cash flow hedges and recorded (i) a net current liability of $41.7 million, repre-
senting the fair market value of all derivatives on that date and (i} a reduction of equity through accumulated other comprehensive
income of $27.1 million, representing the tair market value of the derivatives as of January 1, 2001, net of income taxes of $14.6 million.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No. 143 requires that the fair value
of a liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which it is incurred with the associated asset retirement
costs being capitalized as a part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. SFAS No. 143 also includes disclosure requirements that
provide a description of asset retirement obligations and reconciliation of changes in the components of those obligations. The Company
currently records its plugging and abandonment costs, net of salvage value, with respect to its natural gas and oil properties as addi-
tional DO8A expense using the units-of-production method. This statement will require the Company to recognize a liability for the fair
value of its plugging and abandonment liability, excluding salvage value, with the associated costs as part of its natural gas and oil
property balance. The Company is evaluating the future financial effects of adopting SFAS No. 143 and expects to adopt the standard
effective January 1, 2003.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

At December 31, 2001, the Company’s financial instruments consisted of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables and deriva-
tive instruments, The carrying amounts of cash dnd cash equivalents, receivables and payables approximate fair value because of the
short-term nature of these items. The Company enters into hedging arrangements from time to time to reduce its exposure to fluctuations
in natural gas and oil prices and to achieve more predictable cash flow. These hedging arrangements take the form of swap contracts
or costless collars and are placed with major trading counterparties the Company believes represent minimum credit risks. Under its
current hedging practice, the Company generally does not hedge more than 66%3 percent of its estimated twelve-month production
quantities without the prior approval of the risk management committee of the board of directors.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash equivalents and
trade accounts receivable. Management believes that the credit risk posed by this concentration is offset by the creditworthiness of the
Company's customer base.

Derivative contracts also subject the Company to concentration of credit risk. Management believes that the credit risk posed by
this concentration is mitigated by its hedging palicy. The hedging policy requires that (i} at no time will any hedging agreement of any
nature have a counterparty with a minimum long-term senior unsecured indebtedness rating less than "BBB+" by Standard & Poors
Corporation or “Baal” by Moody's Investors Services, Inc. at the time that such counterparty entered into the relevant transaction
under such hedging agreement and (il at no time will exposure to any single counterparty exceed 25 percent of the estimated twelve-
month production volumes from total proved reserves.

The Company had in place both financial hedge and physical contracts with Enron North America Corp. at the time it filed for bank-
ruptcy in December 2001. Spinnaker did not receive payment for fixed price swap contracts totaling $2.1 million, intended to hedge
December 2001 natural gas sales, and $1.4 miltion related to November 2001 naturat gas production sold to Enron entities. The Company
recorded a net reserve of $3.1 million related to these receivables and has no other exposure to Enron Corp. and its subsidiaries.

RISK FACTORS

The Company’s revenues, profitability, cash flow and future growth rates are substantially dependent upon the price of and demand
for natural gas and oil. Prices for natural gas and oil are subject to wide fluctuations in response to retatively minor changes in the
supply of and demand for natural gas and oil, market uncertainty and a variety of additional factors that are beyond the contro! of the
Company. The Company is also dependent upon the continued success of its exploratory drilling program. Other factors that could affect
revenues, profitability, cash flow and future growth rates include the inherent uncertainties in reserve estimates, the concentration of
production and reserves in a small number of offshore properties, relatively short production periods for Gulf of Mexico properties, hedg-

ing production and the ability to replace reserves and finance growth.
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2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES:

Supplemental disclosures related to accounts receivable and accrued liabilities and other are as follows {in thousands):

December 31, 2001 2000
Natural gas and o sates $ 10,679 $ 32328
Hedging receivable 2,093 -
Joint interest billings 8,735 10,466
insurance claims receivable 4,593 1,581
Other receivables 1,088 1,219
Allowance for doubtful accounts {3,059 -

Total accounts receivable $ 24129 $ 4559
Accrued liabilities $ 43,510 $ 35,672
Deferred income taxes associated with hedging activities 7,208 -

Total accrued liabilities and other $ 50,718 $ 35672
3. DEBT:

In September 1998, the Company entered into an $85.0 million credit agreement ("Credit Agreement”) with certain financial institutions.
The Credit Agreement was secured by the Company’s interests in natural gas and oil properties and by certain guarantees of Petroleum
Geo-Services ASA ("PGS”) and Warburg, Pincus Ventures L.P. ("Warburg”}. With proceeds from the initial public offering, the Company paid
the outstanding borrewings of $72.0 million as of October 4, 1999. Interest expense related to the Credit Agreement was $2.4 million for

the year ended December 31, 1999, excluding amounts related to the stock issuances for guarantees. In consideration for providing guar-

. antees under the Credit Agreement, PGS and Warburg were entitled to receive Common Stock. Such stock issuances were accounted for

in interest expense at the fair value of the guarantees provided and amounted to $840,000 in 1999. The overall weighted average inter-
est rate for borrowings outstanding under the Credit Agreement was 5.71 percent in 1999, The Credit Agreement was scheduled to mature
on December 31, 1999; however, the Company amended and restated the originat Credit Agreement in October 1999.

In October 1999, the Company, Bank of Monireal and Credit Suisse First Boston entered into the $25.0 million Amended and
Restated 364-Day Credit Agreement ("First Amended Credit Agreement”). The weighted average interest rate for borrowings outstand-
ing under the First Amended Credit Agreement was 8.72 percent in 2000. The First Amended Credit Agreement was amended on July
20, 2000. The Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement provided a $75.0 million credit facility ("Second Amended Credit
Agreement”) with an initial borrowing base of $40.0 million and an original term of 384 days. The borrowing base as of December 31,
2000 was $30.0 million. The Second Amended Credit Agreement was renewed for an additional 364-day term on July 18, 2001 before
being terminated on December 28, 2001.

On December 28, 2001, the Company reptaced the Second Amended Credit Agreement with an unsecured $200.0 million credit facility
(“Credit Facility”) with a group of seven banks. The three-year facility has an initial borrowing base of $125.0 million that is re-determined
on April 30 and September 30 each year. The banks and Spinnaker also have the option to request one additionat re-determination each
year. The Company has the option to elect to use a base interest rate as described below or the LIBOR rate plus, for each such rate, a
spread based on the percent of the borrowing base used at that time. The base interest rate under the Credit Facility is a fluctuating
rate of interest equal to the higher of either the Toronto-Dominion Bank’s base rate for dollar advances made in the United States or
the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5 percent per annum. The Credit Facility contains covenants and restrictive provisions, including the fol-
lowing limitations, subject to some exceptions, where the Company:

 may not incur any other indebtedness from borrowings, except for indebtedness arising under hedging agreements, indebted-

ness incurred in the ordinary course of business not to exceed $1.0 miltion, unsecured vendor indebtedness of the Company
related to purchases of 2-D and 3-D seismic data made in the ordinary course of business in an amount not to exceed $25.0 mil-
lion, other unsecured indebtedness in an amount not to exceed $10.0 million in the aggregate;
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- may not incur any liens upon properties or assets other than permitted liens securing indebtedness of up to $1.0 million, liens
on the 2-D and 3-D seismic data securing the indebtedness permitted to acquire such data, pledges or deposits to secure hedg-
ing agreements up to $15.0 million, liens on property required as a condition to enter into a synthetic tease transaction in the
ordinary course of business and other liens in the ordinary course of business;

- may not dispose of any assets or properties except obsolete equipment, inventory sold in the ordinary course of business, reserves
in non-proved categories, a second license in certain seismic data, or interests in natural gas and oil properties included in the
borrowing base in an aggregate amount not to exceed $25.0 million in any fiscal year;

- may not make or pay any dividend, distribution or payment in respect of capital stock nor purchase, redeem, acquire, retire or
permit any reduction or retirement of capital stock in excess of $10.0 million in any fiscal year;

- must maintain the ratio of consolidated current assets to consolidated current liabilities as of the end of each fiscal quarter so
that it is not less than 1.00 to 1.00. For purposes of the calculation, availability under the Credit Facility is included as current
assets, any payments of principal owing under the Credit Facility required to be repaid within one year from the time of the cal-
culation are excluded from current liabilities and mark-to-market hedging exposure is excluded from both current assets and
current liabilities;

- must maintain a tangible net worth so that it is not less than the sum of 80 percent of the tangible net worth as of September 30,
2001, plus 50 percent of the adjusted consolidated net income for each fiscal quarter since the ciosing of the Credit Facility, plus
75 percent of the proceeds from the sale of any security, including without limitation, common equity, preferred equity or other
equity interests or equity securities including warrants, options and the like issued after the closing of the Credit Facility; and

+ may not enter into any hedging agreement unless the percent of volumes to be hedged to estimated production volumes for such
month from total internally-projected proved reserves does not exceed: 100 percent for the period one to three months from and
after the hedging agreement transaction date, 66%3 percent for the period four to 18 months from and after the hedging agree-
ment transaction date and 33%4 percent for the period 19 to 36 months from and after the hedging agreement transaction date.
Additionally, at no time will any hedging agreement of any nature have a counterparty with a minimum long-term senior unse-
cured indebtedness rating less than "BBB+" by Standard & Poors Corporation or "Baal” by Moody’s Investors Services, Inc. at
the time that such counterparty entered into the relevant transaction under such hedging agreement and at no time will expo-
sure to any single counterparty exceed 25 percent of the estimated twelve-month production volumes from total proved reserves.

At December 31, 2001, the Company was in compliance with the covenants and had no outstanding barrowings under the Credit
Facility. As of March 7, 2002, the Company had outstanding borrowings of $21.0 million under the Credit Facility.

L. SEISMIC DATA AGCREEMENT:

The Company and PGS entered into a seismic data agreement (“Data Agreement”) dated December 20, 1996, whereby PGS agreed to
transfer to Spinnaker certain rights to 3-D seismic data in consideration of Spinnaker equity. The Company accounted for the contribu-
tion of the Data Agreement at PGS’ cost, which was immaterial.

The Company has agreed to purchase $2.0 million of seismic related services from PGS prior to Becember 31, 2002. The Company
paid to PGS approximately $397,000, $443,000 and $318,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, for seismic-related services. Through
December 31, 2001, the Company has paid PGS a total of approximately $1.3 million for seismic-related services. The Company expects
to purchase additional seismic-related services for the remaining commitment under the Data Agreement during 2002.

The Data Agreement was amended effective June 30, 1999. The amended Data Agreement moditied the amount, type and geo-
graphic coverage of the data and related information made available to Spinnaker. in exchange for the amended rights under the Data
Agreement, Spinnaker issued to PGS an additional 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock. This transaction was accounted for at PGS’ cost
of $2.9 million, pursuant to Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 48. ’
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5. EQUITY:

Prior to Spinnaker’s initial public offering in September 1989, the Company sold Preferred Stock to various investors. On September 28,
1899, the Company priced its initial public offering of 8,000,000 shares of Common Stock and commenced trading the following day. In
connection with the initial public offering, the Company converted all outstanding Preferred Stock into 6,061,840 shares of Common Stock,
and certain shareholders reinvested preferred dividends payable of $16.3 million into 1,200,248 shares of Common Stock. On August
16, 2000, the Company completed a public offering of 5,600,000 shares of Common Stock at $26.25 per share. After payment of under-
writing discounts and commissions, the Company received net proceeds of $138.9 million. On December 20, 2000, PGS sold its 5,388,743
shares of Common Stock at $29.25 per share. Spinnaker received no proceeds from this sale.

On August 31, 1999, the Company approved a two-for-one stock split on the Common Stock effective September 1, 1999. One addi-
tional share was issued for each share of Common Stock. Par value remained unchanged at $0.01 per share. In connection with the
Stock Split, the Company amended the certificate of incorporation to increase the authorized number of shares of Common Stock to
50,000,000 shares.

Spinnaker has an effective shelf registration statement relating to the potential public offer and sale by the Company or certain affil-
iates of up to $300.0 million of any combination of debt securities, preferred stock, common stock, warrants, stock purchase contracts
and trust preferred securities from time to time. The registration statement does not provide assurance that the Company will or could

sell any such securities.
6. STOCK PLANS:

At December 31, 2001, officers, directors and employees had been granted options to purchase Common Stock under stock plans adopted
in 1998, 1999, 2000 and 2001. The exercise price of each option equals the market price of Spinnaker’s Common Stock on the date of
grant. Stock option grants generally vest ratably over four years, with 20 percent vesting on the date of grant and 20 percent vesting
in each of the succeeding four years, and expire after ten years. In the event of certain significant changes in control of the Campany,
all options then outstanding generally will become immediately exercisable in full.

In January 1998, the stockholders approved the 1998 Stock Option Plan ("1898 Plan”). The 1998 Plan was amended and restated
in September 1899 and authorized the issuance of 2,673,242 shares of Common Stock. In September 1998, the stockholders approved
the 19939 Stock Incentive Plan (“1389 Plan’). The number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued under the 1398 Plan may not
exceed 1,300,000 shares. The maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be subject to awards granted under the 1998
Plan to any one individual during any catendar year may not exceed 300,000. In connection with the 1999 Plan, the stockholders
approved the Adjunct Stock Option Plan ("Adjunct Plan”). The number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued under the Adjunct
Ptan may not exceed 21,320. In November 2000, the board of directors adopted the 2000 Stock Option Plan {"2000 Plan"). Stockholder
approval was not required for the 2000 Plan. The number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued under the 2000 Plan may not
exceed 500,000 shares. In May 2001, the stockholders approved the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan {"2001 Plan”). The number of shares of
Common Stock that may be issued under the 2001 Plan may not exceed 1,500,000 shares.
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The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its employee stock-based compensation. in
accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, compensation expense related to stock-based compensation included in general and adminis-
trative expense was approximately $114,000, $158,000 and $150,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Had compensation cost for
the Company's stock option compensation plans been determined based on the fair value at the grant dates for awards under these
plans consistent with the method of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” the Company’s pro forma net income
(loss) available to common stockholders and pro forma net income (loss) per common share would have been as follows (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Pro forma net income {loss) available to common stockholders $ 57379 $ 35543 $ (10,950}
Pro forma net income (loss) per common share:
Basic $ 212 $ 157 $ (131
Diluted $ 202 $ 148 $ (1.3

For purposes of the SFAS No. 123 disclosure, the fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model with assumptions for grants in 2001, 2000 and 1899 as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Risk-free interest rate £.85% - 5.57% 514% - 6.82% 4.87% - 6.08%

Volatility factor 43.0% 42.5% 54.8%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected tife of the options {years) 4 4 45
Presented below is a summary of stock option activity.
2001 2000 1939
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Shares Average Shares Average Shares Average
Under Exercise Under Exercise Under Exercise
Option Price Option Price Option Price
Qutstanding, beginning of year 3,718,886 $ 13.80 3,382,974 $ 1056 2,526,880 $ 9N
Granted 1,242,800 37.90 802,470 23.45 866,574 14.74
Exercised (810,991) 8.82 (466,558) 6.88 (5,872) 497
Forfeited (88,139) 1757 - - (£,608) 9.29
Outstanding, end of year 4,062,556 22.08 3,718,886 13.80 3,382,974 10.56
Exercisable, end of year 2,273,548 16.16 2,364,270 11.38 1,919,019 9.62
Available for grant, end of year 648,545 303,206 605,676
Weighted average fair value of
options granted during the year $ 23.76 $ 1517 $ 678

The Company transferred treasury shares to certain employees in connection with their exercises of 2,128 and 4,080 options in
2001 and 2000, respectively. Options to purchase 640 shares of Common Stock forteited during 1998 are not available for future grants.

us




LB

SPINNAKER EXPLORATION COMPANY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

At December 31, 2001, the following options were outstanding and exercisable and had the indicated weighted average remaining

contractual lives:

Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Range of Average Average Average
Exercise Number Exercise Number Exercise Remaining
Prices Per of Price Per of Price Per Contractual
Share Options Share Options Share Life (Years)
$2.50 - $5.00 626,824 $ 4.94 602,272 $ 495 52
$14.50 - $16.13 1,785,312 15.37 1,256,598 15.39 6.7
$22.25 - $31.69 367,420 27.79 134,838 2761 9.0
$3755 - $41.73 1,283,000 3817 279,840 38.21 92
4,062,556 2,273,548

Prior to July 1999, the stock option agreements of two of the Company's officers provided that they could elect to have the Company
deliver shares equal to the appreciation in the value of the stock over the option price in lieu of purchasing the amount of shares under
option. Based on management’s estimate of the share value of the Company, compensation expense of approximately $1.7 million was
recorded in 1999 related to the stock appreciation rights of the stock option agreements. In July 1999, these two officers agreed to elim-
inate the stock appreciation rights feature of their stock option agreements.

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Basic and diluted net income {loss} per common share is computed based on the following information {in thousands, except per share
amounts}:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Numerator:
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ 66,226 $ 38,566 $ 19,248)

Denominator.

Basic weighted average number ot shares 27,079 22,679 8,355
Dilutive securities:

Stock options 1,281 1,332 —
Diluted adjusted weighted average number of shares and assumed conversions 28,360 24,011 8,355

Net income {loss) per common share:

Basic:
Income {loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 245 $ 170 $ (108
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - - {0.05)
Net income (loss) per common share $ 245 $ 170 $
Diluted:
Income {loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 234 $ 161 $ (1.08)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - - {0.05}
Net income {loss) per common share $ 23 $ 161 $ 1
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For purposes of the diluted earnings per share calcutations in 2001 and 2000, certain stock options that could potentially dilute
earnings per share are excluded as they were anti-dilutive. In addition, the Preferred Stock and stock options are considered anti-dilu-
tive in 1999 and not considered in the calculations.

§ MAJOR CUSTOMERS:

The Company had natural gas and oil sales to four customers accounting for approximately 32 percent, 23 percent, 21 percent and 17
percent, respectively, of total natural gas and oil revenues, excluding the effects of hedging activities, for the year ended December 31,
2001. The Company had natural gas and oil sales to three customers accounting for approximately 61 percent, 11 percent and 11 per-
cent, respectively, of total natural gas and oil revenues, excluding the effects of hedging activities, for the year ended December 31,
2000. The Company had naturat gas and oil sales to two customers accounting for 68 percent and 32 percent, respectively, of total nat-
ural gas and oil revenues, excluding the effects of hedging activities, for the year ended December 31, 1999. One of the customers in

2001 and 2000 was Enron North America Corp. Spinnaker no longer sells its natural gas and oil production to this customer.

9. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The Company paid PGS approximately $397,000, $449,000 and $318,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, for seismic-related services.

The Company paid $17.4 million in 2001 to affiliates of Baker Hughes Incorporated ("Baker Hughes"), an oilfield services company.
Mr. Michael E. Wiley, a director of Spinnaker, serves as Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President of Baker Hughes.
The Company paid $83,000 and $528,000 in 2001 and 2000, respectively, to Cooper Cameron Corporation {“Cooper Cameron”), an oil-
field services company. Mr. Sheidon R. Erikson, a director of Spinnaker, serves as Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and
President of Cooper Cameron. The Company purchases oilfield goods, equipment and services from Baker Hughes, Cooper Cameron
ond other companies in the ordinary course of business. Spinnaker believes that these transactions are at arms-length and the charges
and fees that it pays for such goods, equipment and services are competitive with the charges and fees of other companies providing
oilfield goods, equipment and services to the oil and gas exploration and production industry.

The Data Agreement was amended effective June 30, 1999. In exchange for the amended rights under the Data Agreement,
Spinnaker issued 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock to PGS. See Note 4.

From September 30, 1998 through October 4, 1998, PGS and Warburg provided certain guarantees for the Credit Agreement total-
ing $75.0 million. See Note 3.

10. INCOME TAXES:

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had approximately $162.2 million of net operating loss carryforwards, of which $23.0 million,
$30.2 million, $39.5 million and $69.5 million expire in 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021, respectively.
The significant items giving rise to the deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

As of December 31, 2001 2000

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Basis differences in natural gas and oil properties $ 104,141 $ 50,925
Hedging activities 7,812 —
Total deferred income tax liabilities 111,953 50,925

Deferred income tax assets:
Net operating losses $ 58,400 $ 32,836
Other 622 932
Total deferred income tax assets 59,022 33,768
Net deferred income tax liabilities $ 52,931 $ 17157

L7
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Tax benefits of $3.0 million and $3.7 million associated with the exercise of non-qualified stock options during the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000 are reflected as a component of equily. The deferred income tax liability includes $7.8 million related to
the tax effect of the fair market value of derivatives at December 31, 2001 as required by SFAS No. 133, as amended.

Significant components of the provision for income taxes are as follows (in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Current $ 275 $ 25 $ -

Deferred 36,977 20,833 -
Total provision $ 37,252 $ 20,858 $ -

The ditterences between the provision for income taxes and the amount that would be determined by applying the statutory tederal income

tax rate of 35 percent to the income {loss) before income taxes are as fotlows {in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Federal income tax expense {benefit) at statutory rates $ 36217 $ 20,798 $  (468)
Non-deductible expenses and other 1,035 659 601
Valuation allowance — (599) (133)
Total provision $ 37.252 $ 20,858 $ —

No net income tax benefit was recognized in 1999 due to the uncertainty of tuture reatization as the Company had not established
a history of net operating income.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

The Company is, from time to time, party to certain legal actions and claims arising in the ordinary course of business. While the out-
come of these events cannot be predicted with certainty, management does not expect these matters to have a materially adverse effect
on the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

DATA AGREEMENT
The Company has agreed to purchase $2.0 million of seismic-related services from PGS prior to December 31, 2002. Through December
31, 2001, the Company paid PGS a total of approximately $1.3 million for these services.

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has employment contracts with certain of its executive officers. These contracts provide for annual base salaries, bonus
compensation, various benefits and the continuation of salary and benefits for the respective terms of the agreements in the event of
termination of employment for various reasons, and whether by the Company or the employee. These agreements are subject to aute-

matic annual extensions unless terminated.

EMPLOYEE 401(K}) RETIREMENT PLAN
In July 1998, the Company instituted a 401(k) retirement and profit sharing plan ("401() Plan’} for its employees. The 401(k) Plan provides
that all qualified employees may defer the maximum income allowed under current tax law. The 401(k} Plan covers all employees at [east 21
years of age who have completed at least six months of service subsequent to employment.

Eftective January 1, 2000, the Company began matching employee contributions to the 401(k} Plan. The Company matches 100 percent
of each participant's contributions up to six percent of the participant's annual base salary. In connection with the employer match, the
Company issued 5,456 shares of Common Stock valued at $216,000 in 2001 and 5,923 shares of Common Stock valued at $148,000 in 2000.
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LEASES

The Company leases administrative offices under non-cancelable operating leases expiring in 2007. Certain of the lease agreements
require that the Company pay for utilities, maintenance and other operational expenses of the building. Additionally, the leases contain
escalation clauses. The Company also leases office equipment and oil and gas equipment under non-cancelable operating leases.
Rental expense was $700,000, $476,000 and $319,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Minimum future obligations under non-
cancelable operating leases at December 31, 2001 for the following five S/ecrs are $1.2 million, $1.3 million, $1.3 mitlion, $1.3 million and

$1.8 million, respectively.

SUMMARY OF CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
The Company had no debt or capital leases outstanding as of December 31, 2001. The Company has incurred obligations in the ordi-
nary course of business under purchase and service agreements which are not included in the table below. Obligations under operat-

ing leases and the Data Agreement as of December 31, 2001 are as follows:

Payments Due by Period

Less
than 1 1-3 4-5 After 5
Total Year Years Years Years
Operating leases $ 691 $ 1222 $ 3.858 $ 183 $ -
Unconditional Data Agreement obligations 855 655 - - -
Total $ 7569 $ 1877 $ 3858 $ 183 $ -

12. COMMODITY PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES:

The Company enters into New York Mercantile Exchange ("NYMEX") related swap contracts and coliar arrangements from time to time. The
Company’s swap contracts will settle based on the reported settiement price on the NYMEX for the last trading day of each month for nat-
ural gas. In a swap transaction, the counterparty is required to make a payment to the Company for the difference between the fixed price
and the settlement price if the settlement pricé is below the fixed price. The Company is required to make a payment to the counterparty
for the difference between the fixed price and the settlement price it the settiement price is above the fixed price. Some of the master agree-
ments require the Company to make margin payments to counterparties when net exposure exceeds a certain threshold. As of March 7,

2002, Spinnaker’s commodity price risk management positions in fixed price natural gas swap contracts were as follows:

Average Daily Weighted Average
Period Volume (MMBtu} Price Per MMBtu
First Quarter 2002 100,000 $ 323
Second Quarter 2002 ’ 93,407 3.20
Third Quarter 2002 80,000 3.37
Fourth Quarter 2002 76,685 358
Full Year 2003 25,000 3.27

Based upon the Company's assessment of its derivative contracts at December 31, 2001, it reported (i) a ret current asset of $20.6
million and a noncurrent asset of $1.7 million and (i} accumulated other comprehensive income of $14.5 mittion, net of income taxes of
$7.8 million. The Company recognized no ineffective component of the derivatives in earnings in 2001. In connection with monthly set-
tlements, the Company recognized net hedging losses of $9.6 million in revenues in 2001. Based on future natural gas prices as of
December 31, 2001, the Company would reclassify $20.6 million from accumulated other comprehensive income 1o earnings within the
next 12 months. The amounts ultimately reclassified into earnings will vary due to changes in the fair value of the open derivative con-

tracts prior to settlement.
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13. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

(UNAUDITED):

Quarterly operating results for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 are summarized as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

For the Quarter Ended (Unaudited) Mareh 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2001.
Revenues $ 67453 $ 59,500 $ 44818 $ 38,605
income from operations 42,792 32,886 16,150 8,457
Net income 28,148 21,781 10,803 5,484
Net income per common share:
Basic $ 105 $ 080 $ 040 $¢ 020
Diluted $ 100 $ 077 $ 038 $ 019
2000.
Revenues $ 13,867 $ 19145 $ 29,755 $ 58616
Income from operations 2,926 5,323 13,356 35,659
Net income 3,086 5,239 8,229 22,012
Net income per common share:
Basic $ 015 $ 026 $ 035 $ 084
Diluted $ 015 $ 024 $ 033 $ 079

The Company had in place both financial hedge and physical contracts with Enron North America Corp. at the time it filed for bank-

ruptey in December 2001. Spinnaker did not receive payment for fixed price swap contracts intended to hedge December 2001 naturat
gas sales and November 2001 natural gas production sold to Enron entities. The Company recorded a net reserve of $3.1 million in the
fourth quarter of 2001 related to these receivables and has no other exposure to Enron Corp. and its subsidiaries.

14. SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON NATURAL GAS AND OifL
EXPLORATION, DEVELOPMENT AND PROBUCTION ACTIVITIES {UNAUDITED}:

The following tables set forth certain historical costs and operating information related to the Company’s natural gas and oil preducing

activities.

CAPITALIZED COSTS AND COSTS INCURRED

Capitalized costs and costs incurred related to natural gas and oil producing activities are summarized below (in thousands):

As of December 31, 2001 2000
Capitalized costs:
Proved properties $ 575,808 $ 293,002
Unproved properties not being amortized 102,881 83,165
Total 578,687 376,167
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization (158,7L6) (73,687)
Net capitalized costs $ 519,941 $ 302,480

Depreciation, depletion and amortization per Mcfe was $1.60,

$1.57 and $1.59 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
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COSTS INCURRED IN OIL AND NATURAL GAS PROPERTY ACQUISITION, EXPLORATION AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

Acquisition costs include costs incurred to purchase, lease or otherwise acquire property. Exploration costs include the costs of drilling
exploratory wells, including those in progress, geological and geophysical service costs and depreciation of support equipment used in
exploration activities. Development costs include the costs of drilling development wells and costs of completions, plattorms, facilities and

pipelines. Costs incurred in oil and natural gas property acquisition, exploration and development activities are as follows {in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Acquisition costs:

Unproved $ 34524 $ 21421 $ 13,911
Proved — — —
Exploration costs 192,114 121,451 45152
Development costs 75,882 51,144 23614
Total costs incurred $302,520 $194,016 $ 82677

ESTIMATES OF PROVED NATURAL GAS AND O!lL RESERVES

Proved natural gas and oil reserve quantities and the related discounted future net cash flows belore income taxes are based an esti-
mates prepared by Ryder Scoit Company, L.P., independent petroleum consultants. Such estimates have been prepared in accordance
with guidelines established by the Commission.

Proved reserves are estimated quantities of natural gas and cil which geological and engineering data demonstrate with reason-
able certainty to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions. Proved devel-
oped reserves are proved reserves that can reasonably be expected to be recovered through existing wells with existing equipment
and operating methods.
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The Company's net ownership in estimated quantities of proved natural gas and oil reserves and changes in net proved reserves, all
of which are located in the Gult of Mexico, are as follows:
Natural Oil and Natural Gas
Gas Condensate Equivalents
{MMcf) (MBbls) (MMcfe)
Proved reserves as of December 31, 1998 50,946 470 53,766
Extensions, discoveries and other additions 43,270 2,039 55,505
Revisions of previous estimates 7,776 83 8,274
Production {11,962} (180) (13,044)
Proved reserves as of December 31, 1999 90,030 2,412 104,501
Extensions, discoveries and other additions 97,665 1,027 103,829
Revisions of previous estimates 5,248 (116) 4,552
Production (28,845) (225) (30,184}
Proved reserves as of December 31, 2000 164,098 3,088 182,688
Extensions, discoveries and other additions 74,531 18,921 188,057
Revisions of previous estimates (11,414) 2,829 5,556
Production (51,234) (310) {53,084)
Proved reserves as of December 31, 2001 ™ 175,981 24,538 323,207
Proved developed reserves:
December 31, 1998 30,806 318 32,715
December 31, 1999 50,756 384 53,062
December 31, 2000 112,315 1,042 118,568
December 31, 2001 " 82,221 748 86,711
" During 2001, Spinnaker participated in a significant deep water oil discovery on Green Canyon Blocks 338/339 ("Front Runner”) with a 25 percent no
operator working interest. The Company participated in five consecutive successtul wells and sidetracks in testing the reservoirs on these blocks. This
significant ol discovery has changed Spinnaker's reserve profile. Proved oil and condensate reserves were 46 percent of total proved reserves at

December 31, 2001 compared fo 10 percent at December 31, 2000. Of the Company’s fotal proved reserves as of December 31, 2001, 73 percent were
proved undeveloped reserves. Front Runner represented mare than 50 percent of total proved undeveloped reserves.

STANDARDIZED MEASURE OF DISCOUNTED FUTURE NET CASH FLOWS
The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows from production of proved reserves was developed as follows:
- Estimates are made of quantities of proved reserves and the future periods during which they are expected to be produced based
on year-end economic conditions.
- The estimated future gross revenues of proved reserves are priced on the basis of year-end market prices.
» The future gross revenue streams are reduced by estimated future costs to develop and to produce the proved reserves, as well
as certain abandonment costs based on year-end cost estimates and the estimated effect of future income taxes.
- Future income taxes are computed by applying the statutory tax rate to future net cash flows reduced by the tax basis of the prop-
erties, the estimated permanent differences applicable to future natural gas and oil producing activities and tax carryforwards.
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The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows is not intended to present the fair market value of the Company's

“““ natural gas and oil reserves. An estimate of fair value would also take into account, among other things, the recovery of reserves in
excess of proved reserves, anticipated future changes in prices and costs, an allowance for return on investment and the risks inher-

ent in reserve estimates. Given the volatility of natural gas and oil prices, it is reasonably possible that the Company’s estimate of dis-

counted future net cash flows from proved natural gas and oil reserves will change in the near term. If natural gas and oil prices decline,

even if for only a short period of time, or it the Company has significant downward revisions to its estimated proved reserves, it is pos-

sible that write-downs of natural gas and oil properties could occur in the future. The standardized measure of discounted future net

cash fiows relating to proved naturat gas and oil reserves is as follows (in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Future cash inflows " $ 944,861 $ 1,730,754 $ 275539
Future operating expenses (164,105} (60,259} (36,396)
Future development costs (191,711} (68,929 (8,717)
Future net cash flows before income taxes 589,045 1,601,566 190,426
Future income taxes? {120,489) (516,488) -
= Future het cash flows 468,556 1,085,078 190,426
10 percent annual discount (139,000) (185,941) {(38,862)
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows $ 329556 $ 899,137 $ 151,564

™ Weighted average market prices for natural gas and oil used to calculate future cash inflows were $2.71, $9.99 and $2.37 per Mcf of natural gas and
$19.23, $30.41 and $25.70 per barrel of oil in 2001, 2000 and 1998, respectively.

? Net operating loss carryforwards and basis in natural gas and oil properties eliminated the need for future income taxes in 1399.

The primary sources of change in the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows are as follows (in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Standardized measure, beginning of year $ 899137 $ 151,564 $ 52109
Extensions and discoveries, net of related costs 198,709 719,69 75,572
Sales of natural gas and oil produced, net of production costs (207,824) (131,030) {28,087}
Net changes in prices and production costs (958,755) 486,496 22,869
Change in future development costs (18,959) (3.501) (1,957)
Bevelopment costs incurred during the period that reduced future development costs 47463 37,851 14,494
Revisions of quantity estimates ‘ 6,092 34,743 13,624
Accretion of discount 132,067 15,156 5,211
Net change in income taxes 335,952 (£21,535) -
Change in production rates and other {104,326) 9,693 {2,261)

Standardized measure, end of year $ 329,556 $ 899,137 $ 151564

53




- SPINNAKER EXPLORATION COMPANY
5 Setected Financial Data

1 The following table sets forth some of the Company’s historical consolidated financial data. The following data should be read in con-

i junction with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes thereto included elsewhere herein. The selected consolidated financial data provided below are not necessarily
indicative of the future results of operations or financial performance of the Company.

Year Ended December 31, (in thousands, except per share data) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA.

Revenues $210,376 $121,383 $ 34,258 $ 3298 & 2m
Expenses:
Lease operating expenses 12,132 9,008 5,611 L74 72
Depreciation, depletion and amortization —
naturol gas and oil properties 85,059 47,451 20,788 2,738 68
Depreciation and amortization — other 398 309 213 437 349
Write-down of natural gas and oil properties ™ - — - 2,642 -
General and administrative 9,443 7,350 4,860 3,809 1,365
Charges related to Enron bankruptcy @ 3,059 - - - -
Stock appreciation rights expense ? — - 1,651 — —
Total expenses 110,091 64,119 32,923 10,500 2,454
Income {loss) from operations 100,285 57,264 1,335 (6,802) {2,253)
Other income (expense).
Interest income 3,57 : 2,908 528 221 91
Interest expense, net (381) {748) (2,805) 279) -
Total other income (expense) 3193 2160 (2,277) (58) 91
Income (loss) before income taxes 103,478 59,424 {942) (6,860) (2162)
Income tax provision 37,252 20,858 - - —
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle 66,226 38,566 (942) (6,860) (2162}
: Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — - (395) — -
i Net income (loss) 66,226 38,566 (1,337) {6,860} (2,162
: Accrual of dividends on preferred stock - - (7.911) {7,094) {1,326}
) Net income {loss) available to common stockholders $ 66,226 $ 38,566 $ 19,248) $ (13,954) $ (3,488)

Basic income (loss) per common share: ®®
Income (loss} before cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle § 245 $ 170 $ (108 $  (3.44) ¢ (088
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - - (0.05) - -
Net income (loss) per common share $ 245 $ 170 $ 1Y $ (.44 $ (088)

{ Dituted income (loss} per common share: 9 ®
] Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle $ 23 $ 161 $ (108 $ (344 $ (088

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ® - - 0.05) - -

Net income {loss) per common share $ 23 $ 161 $ (111 $  (3.44) $ {0.88)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding: ®®

Basic 27,079 22,679 8,355 4,059 3,960

Diluted 28,360 24,011 8,355 4,058 3,960
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Year Ended December 31, (in thousands) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
SUMMARY BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Working capital (deficit) $ {20,654) $ 74,005 $ 19675 $ (30,641) $ 4,252
Property and equipment, net 522,573 304,381 157,397 95,607 15,452
Total assets 587,316 442,704 189,553 102,769 22,358
Short-term debt — — — 19,000 -
Accrued preferred dividends payable ® _ - - 8,478 1,383
Total equity 458,492 361,259 177,102 56,913 18,879

" At December 31, 1998, the Company recognized a non-cash write-down of natural gas and oil properties in the amount of approximately $2.6 mitlion
in connection with the ceiling limitation required by the full cost method of accounting for natural gas and oil properties. The write-down was prima-
rily the result of the decline in natural gas prices experienced in 1998 and through April 9, 1999. As permitted by applicable Commission rules, in cal-
culating the amount of the write-down, the Company used post year-end natural gas and oil price increases of $0.26 per MMBtu of natural gas and

“““ $4.52 per barrel of oil from December 31, 1998 to April 8, 1999. If the Company had used only December 31, 1998 natural gas and ot prices, it would
have recognized a total non-cash write-down of natural gas and oil properties of approximately $13.0 million.

{2)

The Company had in place both financial hedge and physical contracts with Enron North America Corp. at the time it filed for bankruptcy in December
2001. Spinnaker did not receive payment for fixed price swap contracts totaling $2.1 millien, intended to hedge December 2001 naturat gas sales, and
$1.4 million related to November 2001 natural gas production sold to Enron entities. The Company recorded a net reserve of $3.1 million against these
receivables and has no other exposure to Enron Corp. and its subsidiaries.

a8

Prior to July 1999, the stock option agreements of two of the Company’s officers provided that they could elect to have Spinnaker deliver shares equat
to the appreciation in the value of the stock cver the option price in lieu of purchasing the amecunt of shares under option. Based on management’s
estimate of the share value of Spinnaker, the Company recorded compensation expense of approximately $1.7 million in 1999 related to the stock
appreciation rights of the stock option agreements. In July 1999, these two officers agreed to eliminate the stock appreciation rights feature of their
stock option agreements.

[

The cumulative effect of change in accounting principle represents the adoption of Statement of Position 38-5 "Reporting on the Costs of Start-Up Activities.”

(5)

Spinnaker was originally formed as a limited liability company, and the Company issued common units and preferred units. In connection with its con-
version to a corporation in January 1998, the Company exchanged Common Stock for all then outstanding common units and Preterred Stock for all
then outstanding preferred units. The Company expresses all historical unit data in shares of Common Stock.

(8]

In connection with the initial public offering, the Company issued 8,000,000 shares of Common Stock, converted all then outstanding shares of
Preferred Stock into 6,061,840 shares of Common Stock and issued 1,200,248 shares of Common Stock to certain holders of the previously outstang-
ing Preferred Stock in lieu of payment of accrued cash dividends. On August 16, 2000, the Company completed a public offering of 5,600,000 shares
of Common Stock.
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